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MLC Investment Trust
List of Scheme
For the year ended 30 June 20:

The MLC Investment Trust consists of 23 separate schemes:
Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolic
ARSN 087 446 375

Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolic
ARSN 096 796 379

Wholesale Income Builde
ARSN 087 447 265

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio
ARSN 165 016 151

Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio
ARSN 087 446 633

Horizon 2 Income Portfolio
ARSN 117 295 584

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolic
ARSN 165 016 035

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Assertive Portfolic
ARSN 117 295 315

MLC Wholesale Diversified Debt Func
ARSN 130171 078

Horizon 6 Share Portfolic
ARSN 096 796 075

Wholesale Property Securities Fun
ARSN 087 447 425

Wholesale Global Share Fun
ARSN 087 446 875

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Func
ARSN 087 447 078

MLC Investment Trust MLC Platinum Global Fund
ARSN 092 475 904

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio
ARSN 117 295 495

MLC Global Property Fund
ARSN 124 947 164

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Index Func
ARSN 150 845 971

Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolic
ARSN 102 215 501

MLC Hedged Global Share Func
ARSN 124 946 998

Wholesale Australian Share Growth Style Fun
ARSN 111 074 125

Wholesale Australian Share Value Style Fun
ARSN 111 074 054

Wholesale Global Share Growth Style Fun
ARSN 111 074 170

Wholesale Global Share Value Style Fur
ARSN 111 074 152



MLC Investment Trust
Directors' Report
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Directors' report

The Directors of MLC Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of the following schemes (the 'Schemes"):

Horizon 4 Balanced Portfol
(‘Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolit

Wholesale Income Build
('Income Builder

Horizon 5 Growth Portfoli
("Horizon 5 Growth Portfolic

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Conservative Portf
('Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfoli

MLC Wholesale Diversified Debt Fu
(‘'Diversified Debt Func

Wholesale Property Securities Fi
(‘Property Securities Fun

MLC Wholesale Australian Share FL
(‘Australian Share Fun

Horizon 1 Bond Portfoli
("Horizon 1 Bond Portfolic

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Index Fi
(‘Australian Share Index Fun

MLC Hedged Global Share Fu
('Hedged Global Share Fur

Wholesale Australian Share Value Style F
(‘Australian Share Value Style Fur

Wholesale Global Share Value Style F
(‘Global Share Value Style Fur

present their report together with the financial report of the Schemes for the year ended 30 June 2016 and the independent audit report thereon.

Directors of the Responsible Entit

Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfc
('Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfol

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Moderate Portf
('Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfoli

Horizon 2 Income Portfol
("Horizon 2 Income Portfolic

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Assertive Portfolio
('Inflation Plus -Assertive Portfolio’)

Horizon 6 Share Portfol
('Horizon 6 Share Portfolic

Wholesale Global Share Fu
(‘Global Share Func

MLC Investment Trust MLC Platinum Global Ft
(‘Platinum Global Func

MLC Global Property Fur
(‘Global Property Func

Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfc
('Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfoli

Wholesale Australian Share Growth Style F
(‘Australian Share Growth Style Fur

Wholesale Global Share Growth Style F
(‘Global Share Growth Style Fur

The names of the persons who were Directors of MLC Investments Limited during or since the end of the year are

Name

S C Birkensleig
J G Duffielc

P Gupti

G J Mulcah

Appointment / Resignation Datt

Appointed 9 September 2C
Appointed 24 August 20:
Appointed 1 September 2C
Appointed 7 July 201

The registered office of MLC Investments Limited is located at Ground Floor, MLC Building, 105-153 Miller St, North Sydney NS

Principal activities

The Schemes are unlisted registered managed investment schemes domiciled in Australia.

The Schemes invest and transact in unlisted managed investment schemes in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutions of the Schemes.

The Schemes did not have any employees during the year (2015: Nil).

There have been no significant changes to the activities of the Schemes during the year.

The Schemes are for profit entities for the purposes of preparing financial statements.

Results and review of operation

The results of the operations of the Schemes are disclosed in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. These results are

affected by the performance of the markets to which the individual Schemes have exposure.

For details in relation to the Schemes' investment exposure and strategy, information can be obtained from the investment fund profiles located on the

MLC website at mic.com.au or alternatively in the Product Disclosure Statement.



MLC Investment Trust
Directors' Report
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Distributions
The distributions for the year ended 30 June 2016 were as follows:

$'00C clunit
Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio 77,88: 7.5€
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolio 39,09¢ 6.71
Income Builder 35,28! 11.8(
Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio 13,43¢ 3.7t
Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio 31,03¢ 8.94
Horizon 2 Income Portfolio 22,30¢ 6.82
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfolio Class A 29,24: 8.1z
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfolio Class B 28t 6.84
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolio 8,21¢ 2.9¢
Diversified Debt Fund Class A 9,13¢ 4.81
Diversified Debt Fund Class B 10¢€ 3.5
Horizon 6 Share Portfolio 16,720 9.71
Property Securities Fund 6,49: 3.1<
Global Share Fund 20,44¢ 15.9¢
Australian Share Fund 3,95( 6.14
Platinum Global Fund 6,55: 7.58
Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio 2,193 2.59
Global Property Fund Class A 6,644 5.85
Global Property Fund Class B 324 6.63
Australian Share Index Fund 2,158 5.00
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolio 4,174 14.14
Hedged Global Share Fund Class A 1,703 5.15
Hedged Global Share Fund Class B 68 4.84
Whole Dollars $ c/unit
Australian Share Growth Style Fund 327,299 12.53
Australian Share Value Style Fund 74,233 1.44
Global Share Growth Style Fund 1,327,181 65.37

Global Share Value Style Fund - -

Units on issue

Units on issue as at year end and movements during the year are shown in Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders.

The total assets of the Schemes are set out in the Statements of Financial Position. The basis for valuation of the Schemes' assets is disclosed in Note
1 to the financial statements.

State of affairs

In the opinion of the Responsible Entity, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Schemes that occurred during the year unless
otherwise disclosed.

The Australian Share Growth Style Fund, Australian Share Value Style Fund, Global Share Growth Style Fund and Global Share Value Style Fund
commenced winding up their operations during the year.

Likely developments

The Schemes will continue to pursue their policy of competitive returns through a selection process that identifies investment managers in each asset
class.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Schemes and the expected results of those operations in future financial years
has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Schemes.

Auditor’s independence

The Directors received a declaration of independence from the auditor of the Schemes, a copy of which is attached to the Directors’ report on
page 6.

Events subsequent to the balance date

There has not arisen in the interval between the year end and the date of this report any other item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature likely, in the opinion of the Responsible Entity, to significantly affect the operations of the Schemes, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Schemes, in future financial years.

Interests of the Responsible Entity

Units held by MLC Investments Limited and its related parties in the Schemes during the financial year ended 30 June 2016 are detd{led in Note
and7(i) to the financial statements.
Fees paid to the Responsible Entity during the financial year ended 30 June 2016 are detailef(é) fddtee financial statements.

Environmental regulation

The operations of the Schemes are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under a Commonwealth, State or Territory
law.



MLC Investment Trust
Directors' Report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Indemnities and insurance premiums for Officers or Auditors

Indemnification

The Schemes have not indemnified or made a relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability any person who is or has been an officer of the
Responsible Entity or an auditor of the Schemes during the year.

Insurance premiums

During the year the ultimate parent company of the Responsible Entity, National Australia Bank Limited, has paid, or agreed to pay, premiums in
respect of its officers for liability, legal expenses, insurance contracts, and premiums in respect of such insurance contracts, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2016. Such insurance contracts insure against certain liability (subject to specified exclusions) for persons who are or have been the
officers of the Responsible Entity.

Details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid has not been included as such disclosure is prohibited under the
terms of the contracts.

Rouriding

With the exception of Australian Share Growth Style Fund, Australian Share Value Style Fund, Global Share Growth Style Fund and Global Share
Value Style Fund, the Schemes meet the criteria set out in Instrument 2016/191 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, and
in accordance with that Corporate Instrument, amounts in the financial report and the Directors' report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand
dollars unless otherwise stated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of MLC Investments Limited:

N ngleﬂ GIRENSEICH
irector:
Signature: /% 7 /( /< /"L-\, Y ('\ )/ \\

Dated &t Sydney this :77C )* kL day of Augu;t 2016

-5-



Ernst & Young

200 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

EY

Building a better
working world

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of MLC Investments
Limited, as Responsible Entity for MLC Investment Trust

As lead auditor for the audit of MLC Investment Trust consisting of the Schemes listed below for the

financial year ended 30 June 2016:
Wholesale Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth
Portfolio
Wholesale Australian Share Growth Style Fund
Wholesale Australian Share Value Style Fund
Wholesale Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio
Wholesale Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio
Wholesale IncomeBuilder™

Wholesale Horizon 3 Conservative Growth
Portfolio

Wholesale Horizon 6 Share Portfolio
Wholesale Global Share Growth Style Fund
Wholesale Global Property Fund (Multi Class)
Wholesale Global Share Value Style Fund

Wholesale Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio

Wholesale Hedged Global Share Fund (Multi Class)

Wholesale Horizon 2 Income Portfolio
Wholesale Global Share Fund

MLC Investment Trust MLC Platinum Global Fund
Wholesale Property Securities Fund

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Index Fund
MLC Wholesale Australian Share Fund

MLC Wholesale Diversified Debt Fund (Multi Class)
MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolio
MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Assertive Portfolio
(Multi Class)

| declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in

relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

@‘Mt ¢ ﬁowg
Ernst & Young

Rita Da Silva

Partner
30 August 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



MLC Investment Trust

Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incon

For the year ended 30 June 20:

Investment income
Dividend and distribution
income

Interest income
Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

Expense

Responsible Entity's fees
Other eyenses

Total operating expense

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset
attributable to
unitholders

Investment income
Dividend and distribution
income

Interest income
Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

Expense

Responsible Entity's fees
Other eyenses

Total operating expense

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset

attributable to
unitholders

Notes

7(h)

7(e)

Notes

7(h)

(e)

Horizon 4 Balanced

Horizon 3 Conservative

. Inflation Plus - Moderate
Income Builder

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
68,584 33,241 33,357 14,154 34,066 45,104 15,274 9,589
56 88 29 51 42 50 34 21
(73,981) 49,991 (33,928) 24,221 (61,131) 398 (11,993) (728)
9,273 8,708 5,683 5,009 6,099 6,385 - -
3,932 92,028 5,141 43,435 (20,924 51,937 3,315 8,882
- - - - - - 1,076 400
1 - 1 - 1 - 1 2
1 - 1 - 1 - 1,077 402
3,931 92,028 5,140 43,435 (20,925) 51,937 2,238 8,480
77,883 42,035 39,096 19,222 35,281 53,415 13,438 9,654
(73,952 49,993 (33,956 24,213 (56,206 (1,478) (11,200 (1,174)
(73,952) 49,993 (33,956) 24,213 (56,206) (1,478) (11,200) (1,174)
Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive

Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢€ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
27,614 11,323 16,327 10,934 9,130 5,987 35,768 32,335
23 31 26 40 27 16 26 26
(32,421) 23,060 (7,872) 8,050 (6,130) (159) (33,424) (2,981)
3,408 3,267 - - - - - -
(1,376 37,681 8,481 19,024 3,027 5,844 2,370 29,380
- - 1,333 1,226 815 299 1,708 1,201
- - 1,333 1,226 815 299 1,709 1,201
(1,376) 37,681 7,148 17,798 2212 5,545 661 28,179
31,039 14,619 22,308 8,741 8,218 5,945 29,527 28,747
(32,415 23,062 (15,160 9,057 (6,006 (400) (28,866 (568)
(32,415) 23,062 (15,160) 9,057 (6,006) (400) (28,866) (568)

The above Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Investment income
Dividend and distribution
income

Interest income
Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

Expense

Responsible Entity's fees
Other eyenses

Total operating expense

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset
attributable to
unitholders

Investment income
Dividend and distribution
income

Interest income
Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

Expense

Responsible Entity's fees
Other eyenses

Total operating expense

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset
attributable to
unitholders

Notes

7(h)

(e)

Notes

7(h)

(e)

Diversified Debt Fund

Horizon 6 Share Portfolio Property Securities Fund

Global Share Fund

201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9,977 8,716 15,066 5,078 6,898 6,460 26,368 2,808
21 29 14 19 9 11 9 16
1,297 (468) (18,748) 13,822 22,858 15,912 (29,167) 26,233
- - 1,653 1,613 - - 70 250
11,295 8,277 (2,015 20,532 29,765 22,383 (2,720 29,307
695 662 - - 416 382 - -
695 662 1 - 416 382 - -
10,600 7,615 (2,016) 20,532 29,349 22,001 (2,720) 29,307
9,244 8,089 16,727 6,715 6,492 6,095 20,448 3,068
1,356 (474) (18,743 13,817 22,857 15,906 (23,168 26,239
1,356 (474) (18,743) 13,817 22,857 15,906 (23,168) 26,239

Australian Share Fund

Platinum Global Fund

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

Global Property Fund

201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
4,899 4,326 10,410 16,550 2,365 2,281 6,970 2,471
6 7 8 8 16 13 9 15
(4,145) 737 (18,601) 6,238 (115) 575 (1,964) 6,106
- 751 883 - - - -
760 5,070 (7.432 23,679 2,266 2,869 5,015 8,592
317 352 - - 257 405 367 369
- - - 1 1 1 - -
317 352 - 1 258 406 367 369
443 4,718 (7,432) 23,678 2,008 2,463 4,648 8,223
3,950 3,977 6,553 7.499 2,193 2,013 6,968 2.469
(3,507 741 (13,985 16,179 (185 450 (2,320 5,754
(3,507) 741 (13,985) 16,179 (185) 450 (2,320) 5,754

The above Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Investment income
Dividend and distribution
income

Interest income
Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

7(h)

Expense

Responsible Entity's fees
Other expenses

Total operating expense

(e)

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions 3

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset
attributable to
unitholders

Notes

Investment income
Dividend and distributiol
income

Interest incom

Changes in the fair value
financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other revenue

Total investment income

7(h)

Expense

Responsible Entity's fe
Other expensi

Total operating expense

(e)

Net operating profit/(loss)

Financing costs
Distributions 3

Net profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive
income

Change in net asset
attributable to
unitholders

Australian Share Index

Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share

Australian Share Growth

Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund

201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 gooo ~ Whole ~ Whole Dollars
Dollars $ $

2,277 1,808 4,506 1,548 1,772 261 53,117 224,472
3 6 7 7 5 4 1,211 817
(1,913) (66) (5,338) 4,084 (2,447) 2,072 (36,902) 5,510
367 1,748 (825 5,639 (670 2,337 17,426 230,799
121 97 267 264 143 135 9,434 30,010
- - - - - - - 125
121 97 267 264 143 135 9,434 30,135
246 1,651 (1,092) 5,375 (813) 2,202 7,992 200,664
2,158 1,721 4174 1,224 1,771 261 327,29¢ 195,220
(1,912 (70) (5,266 4,151 (2,584 1,941 (319,307 5,444
(1,912) (70) (5,266) 4,151 (2,584) 1,941 (319,307) 5,444

Australian Share Value

Global Share Growth

Global Share Value Style

Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars 4

88,315 385,961 482,478 103,372 - 299,844
1,493 1,057 1,584 700 1,864 2,561
(196,824) 33,476  (249,223) 650,192 82,101 1,481,875
(107,016 420,494 234,83¢ 754,264 83,965 _ 1,784,280
15,662 43,154 11,338 22,148 26,942 78,459
- 23 - 88 - 109
15,662 43,177 11,338 22,236 26,942 78,568
(122,678) 377,317 223,501 732,028 57,023 _ 1,705,712
74,233 343,934 _ 1,327,181 87,141 - 223,861
(196,911 33,383 _ (1,103,68C 644,887 57,023 _ 1,481,851
(196,911) 33,383 _ (1,103,680) 644,887 57,023 1,481,851

The above Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust

Statements of Financial Positio

As at 30 June 201

Notes

Assets

Cash and caskquivalents  10(b)

Receivables

Financial assets designal
as held at fair value throu¢
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Distributions payable
Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Notes

Assets

Cash and casiquivalents  10(b)

Receivables

Financial assets designated
as held at fair value throu¢
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Distributions payable
Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Notes

Assets

Cash and casiquivalents  10(b)

Receivables

Financial assets designated
as held at fair value throu¢
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Distributions payable
Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Horizon 4 Balanced

Horizon 3 Conservative

Income Builder

Inflation Plus - Moderate

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 201% 201¢€ 201% 201¢€ 201% 201¢€ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
65,680 34,974 32,651 14,852 24,194 38,553 19,043 10,295
839 770 483 456 498 543 3 4
1,095,089 1,002,556 612,763 592,584 485,220 516,875 374,067 167,266
1,161,60¢ 1,038,300 645,897 607,892 509,912 555,971 393,112 177,565
1 5 1 2 2 2 70 43
67,036 32,872 32,504 14,054 19,276 37,923 12,645 9,269
67,037 32,877 32,505 14,056 19,278 37,925 12,715 9,312
1,094,571 1,005,423 613,392 593,836 490,634 518,046 380,398 168,253
Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive
Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 201F 201¢€ 201F 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
21,375 9,970 18,909 6,177 9,780 6,622 35,517 28,966
292 285 1 3 3 4 3 3
364,393 359,820 336,646 312,220 291,821 130,641 316,301 236,947
386,06C 370,075 355,55€ 318,400 301,604 137,267 351,821 265,916
1 3 34 89 43 30 72 93
27,486 11,616 18,098 4,832 7,294 5,452 29,527 28,747
27,487 11,619 18,132 4,921 7,337 5,482 29,599 28,840
358,573 358,456 337,424 313,479 294,267 131,785 322,222 237,076

Diversified Debt Fund

Horizon 6 Share Portfolio

Property Securities Fund

Global Share Fund

201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201¢

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5,542 6,279 15,761 7,357 2,768 2,132 19,042 3,682
3 1 147 143 1 1 1 21
198,213 199,897 171,851 169,063 146,038 123,682 116,415 153,343
203,75¢€ 206,177 187,75¢ 176,563 148,807 125,815 135,45¢ 157,046
20 48 - 3 13 23 17 1
4,896 5,063 16,727 6,715 2,903 1,435 20,447 3,068
4916 5,111 16,727 6,718 2,916 1,458 20,464 3,069
198,842 201,066 171,032 169,845 145,891 124,357 114,994 153,977

The above Statements of Financial Position are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

-10-



MLC Investment Trust

Statements of Financial Positio

As at 30 June 201

Assets

Cash and caskquivalents  10(b)

Receivables

Financialassets designated

as held at fair value throu
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Distributions payable
Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Assets

Cash and casbquivalents  10(b)

Receivables

Financialassets designated

as held at fair value throu
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Distributions payable
Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Assets

Cash and casbquivalents  10(b)

Receivable

Financial assets designal
as held at fair value throu¢
profit or loss

Total asset:

Liabilities

Accounts payable ar
accrued expenses
Distributions payab

Total liabilities excluding
net assets attributable to
unitholders

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders

Notes

5

Notes

5

Notes

5

Australian Share Fund

Platinum Global Fund

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

Global Property Fund

201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
515 2,815 6,914 8,028 1,771 1,380 7,298 3,129
- - 53 72 1 1 1 1
93,912 64,785 89,997 120,447 83,939 93,069 77,587 79,701
94,427 67,600 96,964 128,547 85,711 94,450 84,886 82,831
23 29 - 1 8 22 6 26
- 2,537 6,553 7,499 1,208 796 6,907 2,447
23 2,566 6,553 7,500 1,216 818 6,913 2,473
94,404 65,034 90,411 121,047 84,495 93,632 77,973 80,358

Australian Share Index

Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share

Australian Share Growth

Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 gooo ~ _Whole — Whole
Dollars $ Dollars §
1,126 1,043 4,804 1,671 2,117 507 - 145,654
- - - - - 3 - 51
56,946 44,993 33,934 35,066 26,630 25,121 - 3,444,411
58,072 46,036 38,738 36,737 28,747 25,631 - 3,590,116
4 6 9 16 6 11 - 1,800
784 776 4,174 1,224 1,771 261 - 113,334
788 782 4,183 1,240 1,777 272 - 115,134
57,284 45,254 34,555 35,497 26,970 25,359 - 3,474,982
Australian Share Value Global Share Growth ~ Global Share Value Style
Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢€ 201t
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars 4 Dollars $ Dollars 4 Dollars $ Dollars 4
- 258,02¢ - 138,27¢ - 238,89C
- 109 - 64 - 170
- 5,931,604 - 4,002,005 - 12,946,985
- 6,189,73¢ - 4,140,345 - 13,186,04¢
- 3,016 - 2,537 - 6,328
- 230,471 - 87,141 - 223,861
- 233,493 - 89,678 - 230,189
- 5,956,246 - 4,050,669 - 12,955,856

The above Statements of Financial Position are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholde
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Horizon 4 Balanced Horizon 3 Conservative Inflation Plus - Moderate

Income Builder

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio

$'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 881,996 837,140 483,701 49R)4 490,945 268,242 59,225 58,354
Applications 235,076 210,951 176,545 159,899 105,585 54,179 151,014 139,452
Redemptions (161,642) (145,020) (90,623) (81,900) (77,006) (39,418) (40,812) (39,365)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 49,993 - 24,213 - (1,478) - (1,174) -
Balance at 30 June 201 1,005,42: 903,071 593,83¢€ 536,39¢ 518,04€ 283,002 168,252 158,441
Applications 342,87C 307,49¢ 148,10C 134,242 107,54& 60,819 265,89t 249,16¢
Redemptions (179,770 (163,126 (94,588 (86,034 (78,751 (45,438 (42,550 (40,015
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (73,952) - (33,956) - (56,206) - (11,200) -
Balance at 30 June 201 1,094,571 _ 1,047,43¢ 613,392 584,607 490,634 298,384 380,39¢ 367,594

Horizon 5 Growth

Horizon 2 Income

Inflation Plus - Conservative

Inflation Plus - Assertive

Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Class A

$'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 326,896 312,624 252,064 2410 35,904 35,244 135,343 145,326
Applications 62,126 55,825 109,340 101,831 105,632 98,588 123,034 121,619
Redemptions (53,628) (48,461) (56,982) (53,055) (9,351) (8,787) (24,641) (24,401)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 23,062 - 9,057 - (400) - (640) -
Balance at 30 June 201 358,45€ 319,98¢ 313,47¢ 292,872 131,78% 125,04& 233,09¢€ 242,544
Applications 86,872 78,245 104,17€ 96,967 202,865 191,27¢ 157,63C 163,161
Redemptions (54,340 (49,419 (65,071 (60,779 (34,377 (32,508 (43,695 (45,581
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (32,415) - (15,160) - (6,006) - (28,532) -
Balance at 30 June 201 358,572 348,814 337,424 329,061 294,267 283,81C 318,49¢ 360,124

Inflation Plus - Assertive

Wholesale Diversified

Wholesale Diversified Debt

Horizon 6 Share Portfolio

Portfolio Class B Debt Fund Class A Fund Class B

$'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 2,976 3,177 180,406 1276 2,802 2,776 154,432 152,768
Applications 1,654 1,650 58,119 55,117 481 459 35,983 33,177
Redemptions (722) (731) (39,911) (37,834) (357) (343) (34,387) (31,581)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 72 - (526) - 52 - 13,817 -
Balance at 30 June 201 3,980 4,096 198,08¢ 191,55¢ 2,978 2,892 169,84% 154,364
Applications 1,235 1,258 38,829 37,246 551 533 44,974 41,046
Redemptions (1,158 (2,193 (42,592 (40,840 (368 (355 (25,044 (23,141
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (334) - 1,334 - 22 - (18,743) -
Balance at 30 June 201 3,723 4,161 195,65¢ 187,965 3,183 3,070 171,032 172,26¢

The above Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholde
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Property Securities Fund

Global Share Fund

Australian Share Fund

Platinum Global Fund

$'000 No. ‘000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. ‘000 $'000 No. ‘000
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 123,586 234,645 118,867 14831 71,115 72,542 134,089 127,051
Applications 17,729 30,366 31,347 31,575 8,796 8,639 51 43
Redemptions (32,864) (57,142) (22,476) (22,359) (15,618) (15,116) (29,272) (25,895)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 15,906 - 26,239 - 741 - 16,179 -
Balance at 30 June 201 124,357 207,86¢ 153,977 142,707 65,034 66,065 121,047 101,19¢
Applications 20,089 31,129 25,690 23,724 44,913 46,548 42 35
Redemptions (21,412 (33,175 (41,505 (38,551 (12,036 (12,511 (16,693 (14,432
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 22,857 - (23,168) - (3,507) - (13,985) -
Balance at 30 June 201 145,891 205,825 114,994 127,88C 94,404 100,102 90,411 86,802

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

Global Property Fund

Global Property Fund

Australian Share Index

Class A Class B Fund

$'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000 $'000 No. '000
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 109,722 107,660 63,970 3238 4,785 6,685 29,882 23,520
Applications 22,562 22,004 16,535 24,293 519 637 21,118 16,050
Redemptions (39,102) (38,183) (10,351) (15,360) (854) (2,091) (5,676) (4,332)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 450 - 5,411 - 343 - (70) -
Balance at 30 June 201 93,632 91,481 75,565 112,171 4,793 6,231 45,254 35,238
Applications 18,492 18,021 11,943 17,394 640 796 21,083 16,923
Redemptions (27,444 (26,733 (10,990 (16,036 (1,658 (2,145 (7,141 (5,783
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (185) - (2,211) - (109) - (1,912) -
Balance at 30 June 201 84,495 82,769 74,307 113,52¢ 3,666 4,882 57,284 46,378

Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share

Hedged Global Share Fund Australian Share Growth

Growth Portfolio Fund Class A Class B Style Fund
$000 No. 000 $000 No. ‘000 $000 No.'000 _/hole No.
Dollars §

Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 34,996 28,864 23,747 9876 1,496 1,951 4,451,224 3,709,143
Applications 7,259 5,485 3,177 3,804 254 314 686,389 555,283
Redemptions (10,909) (8,135) (4,859) (5,790) (397) (511) (1,668,075)  (1,343,445)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 4,151 - 1,853 - 88 - 5,444 -
Balance at 30 June 201 35,497 26,214 23,918 27,690 1,441 1,754 3,474,98. 2,920,981
Applications 11,318 8,589 9,207 11,039 97 123 163,55¢€ 134,95¢
Redemptions (6,994 (5,280 (4,740 (5,669 (369 (460 (3,319,231 (3,055,93¢
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (5,266) - (2,482) - (102) - (319,307) -
Balance at 30 June 201 34,555 29,523 25,903 33,060 1,067 1,417 - -

Australian Share Value

Global Share Growth

Global Share Value Style

Style Fund Style Fund Fund
Whole Whole Whole Dollars
Dollars { No. Dollars { No. $ No.
Net assets attributable tc
unitholders
Balance at 30 June 201 5,675,066 6,367,842 2,789,481  2,203,559.1,037,666 11,405,674
Applications 990,849 1,054,701 1,528,279 1,031,580 3,793,333 3,668,486
Redemptions (743,052) (799,630) (911,978) (649,352)  (3,356,994) (3,229,644)
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders 33,383 - 644,887 - 1,481,851 -
Balance at 30 June 201 5,956,24¢ 6,622,91: 4,050,66¢ 2,585,787 12,955,85¢  11,844,51¢
Applications 110,532 120,184 241,92% 147,89¢ 1,016,26( 919,111
Redemptions (5,869,86¢ (6,743,097 (3,188,91z (2,733,68C (14,029,13¢ (12,763,62%
Change in net assets attributable
to unitholders (196,911) - _(1,103,680) - 57,023 -

Balance at 30 June 201 - -

The above Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Cash flows from
operating activities
Dividends and distribution
income received

Interest received

Other income received
Responsible Entity’s fees
paid

Payment of other expenses
Net cash provided
by/(used in) operating

activities 10(a)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale of
investments

Purchases of investments
Net cash provided
by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Applications received
Redemptbns paid
Distributions paid

Net cash provided
by/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange rate
changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial

year 10(b)

Horizon 4 Balanced

Horizon 3 Conservative

. Inflation Plus - Moderate
Income Builder

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
58 87 30 54 44 53 33 19
9,201 8,601 5,655 4,912 6,147 6,328 - -
) R - - - - (1,051) (374)
(5) 1) (2) - (4 - - 2)
9,254 8,687 5,683 4,966 6,187 6,381 (1,018) (357)
101,831 36,190 55,061 17,149 52,218 59,750 20,152 11,940
(199,760 (77,490) (75,810 (91,440) (47,630 (42,720) _ (223,670 (111,890)
(97,929) (41,300) (20,749) (74,291) 4,588 17,030 _ (203,518) (99,950)
340,77¢ 234,036 147,55€ 176,153 107,10¢ 105,295 265,861 150,182
(179,770 (161,642) (94,588 (90,623) (78,751 (77,006) (42,550 (40,812)
(41,627 (23,527) (20,103 (11,606) (53,491 (29,903) (10,027 (1,357)
119,381 48,867 32,865 73,924 (25,134) (1,614) 213,284 108,013
30,706 16,254 17,799 4,599 (14,359) 21,797 8,748 7,706
34,974 18,720 14,852 10,253 38,553 16,756 10,295 2,589
65,680 34,974 32,651 14,852 24,194 38,553 19,043 10,295

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Cash flows from

operating activities
Dividends and distribution
income received

Interest received
Otherincome received
Resposible Entity’s fees
paid

Payment of other expenses
Net cash provided

by/(used in) operating
activities 10(a)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale of
investments

Purchases of investments
Net cash provided
by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Applications received
Redempibns paid
Distributions paid

Net cash provided
by/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange rate
changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial
year 10(b)

Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive
Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
23 33 27 38 27 15 27 25
3,402 3,232 - - - - - B,
- - (2,387) (1,206) (800) (279) (1,728) (1,166)
3 - (2) - 1 - 3) -
3,422 3,265 (1,362) (1,168) (774) (264) (1,704) (1,141)
32,488 16,958 94,073 15,610 6,740 8,120 47,449 28,110
(41,870 (16,550) _ (110,043 (58,554) __ (164,920 (99,290) _ (124,460 (99,190)
(9,382) 408 (15,970) (42,944) (158,180) (91,170) (77,011) (71,080)
83,178 59,833 103,90z 109,236 202,803 105,621 158,174 124,688
(54,340 (53,628) (65,071 (56,982) (34,377 (9,351) (44,853 (25,363)
(11,473 (6,493) (8,767 (6,416) (6,314 (1,185) (28,055 (3,025)
17,365 (288) 30,064 45,838 162,112 95,085 85,266 96,300
11,405 3,385 12,732 1,726 3,158 3,651 6,551 24,079
9,970 6,585 6,177 4,451 6,622 2,971 28,966 4,887
21,375 9,970 18,909 6,177 9,780 6,622 35,517 28,966

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Cash flows from

operating activities
Dividends and distribution
income received

Interest received

Other ncome received
Responible Entity’'s fees
paid

Payment of other expenses
Net cash provided

by/(used in) operating
activities 10(a)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale of
investments

Purchases of investments
Net cash provided
by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Applications received
Redemptbns paid
Distributions paid

Net cash provided
by/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange rate
changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial
year 10(b)

Diversified Debt Fund  Horizon 6 Share Portfolio Property Securities Fund

Global Share Fund

201€ 2015 201€ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
20 29 15 20 10 11 9 17
- - 1,647 1,596 - - 105 258
(721) (655) - - (427) (382) - -
©) - ©) - @ - - -
(704) (626) 1,659 1,616 (418) (371) 114 275
21,349 13,423 19,919 14,550 13,741 23,860 42,049 7,859
(8,392 _ (22,605)__ (26,390 __ (11,190) (6,340 (2.130) (7,920 (14,150)
12,957 (9.182) (6.471) 3.360 7.401 21,730 34,129 (6,291)
39,380 58,600 44,822 35,913 19,689 17,110 25,490 31,199
(42,960  (40,268) (25,044  (34,387) (21,412  (32,864) (41,505 (22,476)
(9,410 (5,032) (6,562 (3,810) (4,624 (5.379) (2,868 (1,788)
(12,990) 13,300 13,216 (2,284) (6,347) _ (21,133) __ (18,883) 6,935
(737) 3,492 8,404 2,692 636 226 15,360 919
6,279 2,787 7,357 4,665 2,132 1,906 3,682 2,763
5,542 6.279 15,761 7.357 2,768 2,132 19,042 3,682

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Cash flows from

operating activities
Dividends and distribution
income received

Interest received

Other ncome received
Responible Entity’'s fees
paid

Payment of other expenses
Net cash provided
by/(used in) operating
activities 10(a)
Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale of
investments

Purchases of investments

Net cash provided

by/(used in) investing

activities

Cash flows from

financing activities

Applications received
Redemptbns paid

Distributions paid

Net cash provided

by/(used in) financing

activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange rate
changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial

year 10(b)

Australian Share Fund

Platinum Global Fund

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

Global Property Fund

201€ 2015 201€ 2015 201€ 2015 201€ 2015
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 11 9 8 16 13 8 16
- - 770 883 - - - -
(321) (353) - - (264) (433) (386) (363)
[ - ©) - @ - @ 1)
(315) (342) 776 891 (255) (420) (379) (348)
11,392 13,180 22,260 35,940 16,731 27,616 11,219 3,960
(39,770 (2,040) - - (5,353 (9,049) (4,100 (7.140)
(28,378 11,140 22,260 35,940 11,378 18,567 7,119 (3,180)
44,892 8,781 - 51 18,492 22,562 12,585 17,054
(12,035  (15,618) (16,693  (29,272) (27,444  (39,102) (12,648 (11,205)
(6,464 (3,544) (7.457 - (1,780 (2.649) (2,508 (844)
26,393 (10,381) __ (24,150)  (29,221) _ (10,732)  (19,189) (2,571) 5,005
(2,300) 417 (1,114) 7,610 391 (1,042) 4,169 1,477
2,815 2,398 8,028 418 1,380 2,422 3,129 1,652
515 2.815 6,914 8.028 1,771 1,380 7,298 3,129

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Notes

Cash flows from
operating activities
Dividends and distribution
income received

Interest received
Otherincome received
Resposible Entity’s fees
paid

Payment of other expenses
Net cash provided
by/(used in) operating

activities 10(a)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale of
investments

Purchases of investments
Net cash provided
by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Applications received
Redempibns paid
Distributions paid

Net cash provided
by/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange rate
changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial

year 10(b)

Australian Share Index

Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share  Australian Share Growth

Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 gooo ~ Whole ~ Whole Dollars
Dollars $ $

5 7 7 6 4 3 1,263 841
(124) (95) (273) (262) (145) (135)  (11,235) (30,271)

- - - - - - - 17
(119) (88) (266) (256) (141) (132) (9,972) (29,447)
3,520 2,260 6,670 7,000 3,740 3,440 3,590,626 1,650,000
(15,110 (15,950) (6,370 (2,210) (5,925 (1,110) _ (130,000 (460,000)
(11,590) (13,690) 300 4,790 (2,185) 2,330 _ 3,460,626 1,190,000
21,083 21,118 11,294 7,249 9,306 3,431 163,40¢ 686,244
(7,141 (5,676) (6,994 (10,909) (5,109 (5,256) (3,319,231 (1,668,075)
(2,150 (1,611) (1,201 (628) (261 (189) __ (440,485 (139,604)
11,792 13,831 3,099 (4,288) 3,936 (2,014) _(3,596,308) (1,121,435)
83 53 3,133 246 1,610 184 (145,654) 39,118
1,043 990 1,671 1,425 507 323 145,654 106,536
1,126 1,043 4,804 1,671 2,117 507 - 145,654

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Statements of Cash Flon
For the year ended 30 June 20:

Australian Share Value
Style Fund

201¢€ 201%
Notes Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars 4
Cash flows from
operating activities
Dividends and distributio
income received - -
Interest receive 1,604 1,100
Other income receive - -
Responsible Entity’s fee
paid
Payment of other expen:

(42,725)

(18,679)

Global Share Growth
Style Fund

201t
Whole
Dollars 4

201¢€
Whole
Dollars $

1,648

(13,876)

(21,161)

Global Share Value Style
Fund

201¢ 201t

Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars 4

711 2,034 2,697

(76,881)

(33,270)
@4 -

Net cash provided
by/(used in) operating

activities 10(a) (17,075) (41,625)

(12,228)

(20,474)

(31,236) (74,184)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from sale
investments

Purchases of investme

5,887,095
(64,000

990,000
(850,000

4,455,261
(220,000

960,000 13,599,086
(1,448.00C

2,030,000

(570,000 _(2,150,00C

Net cash provided
by/(used in) investing
activities

5,823,095 140,000

4,235,261

(488,000)

13,029,086__ (120,000)

Cash flows from
financing activities
Applications receive
Redemptions pa
Distributions pai

110,38¢
(5,869,86¢
(304,561

990,70¢
(743,052
(215,202

241,847
(3,188,912
(1,414,24€

1,528,24¢
(911,978 (14,029,13¢
(33,901

875,971  3,687,93¢
(3,356,994

(83,572 (78,237

Net cash provided
by/(used in) financing
activities

(6,064,046) 32,455

(4,361,311)

582,366 (13,236,740)

252,708

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalel
at the beginning of the
financial year

Effects of exchange ra
changes on cash - -

(258,026) 130,830

258,026 127,196

(138,278)

138,278

73,892

64,386

(238,890) 58,524

238,890 180,366

Cash and cash equivalent
at the end of the financial
year

10(b) - 258,026

138,278 -

238,890

The above Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MLC Investment Trust
Notes to the financial statemen
For the year ended 30 June 20:

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial report of the Schemes for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors
of the Responsible Entity on 30 August 2016.

(a) Statement of complianc

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB’) and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS'), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

(b) Basis of preparatior

The Schemes' financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial report has been prepared on
the basis of historical costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value and held for trading, that have been measured at fair
value.

The current year financial statements for the Australian Share Growth Style Fund, Australian Share Value Style Fund, Global Share Growth Style Fund
and Global Share Value Style Fund have been prepared on a liquidation basis.

The Statements of Financial Position are presented on a liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in decreasing order of liquidity and are not
distinguished between current and non-current. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for financ

liabilities at fair value and net assets attributable to unitholders.

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with current financial year amounts and other
disclosures.

The financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars, and all values are rounded to the nearest $'000 except where otherwise indicated.
(c) Basis of consolidatio

The Schemes are investment entities and, as such, do not consolidate any entities subject to their control. Instead, interests in controlled entities are
classified at fair value through profit or loss, and measured at fair value. The Schemes may hold a controlling interest in any of their underlying
investments and therefore are required to provide additional disclosures as set ouBin Note

(d) Unit prices
The unit price for the units of the Schemes is calculated as at the close of business on each business day.
(e) Terms and conditions on unit

Each unit issued confers upon the unitholders of each Scheme an equal interest in the Scheme, and is of equal value. A unit does not confer any interest
in any particular asset or investment of each Scheme. Unitholders have various rights under the Constitution and the Corporations Act 2001, including
the right to:

(i) have their units redeemed;

(ii) receive income distributions;

(i) attend and vote at meetings of unitholders; and

(iv) participate in the termination and winding up of the Scheme.

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to any unit of a Scheme are identical in all respects.

(f) Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or los

The Schemes have classified all of their investments as designated at fair value through profit or loss except derivatives which are held for trading for

risk management purposes. Securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value.

Investments are valued at their fair value as at reporting date. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets designated as
held at fair value through profit or loss are included in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they

arise.

(g) Fair value measuremer

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest le

is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety as detailed below:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

(h) Significant accounting judgements, estimates, or assumptic

The Schemes may make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience, available information and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities held through profit or loss

Fair value is the price that would be receivednfidisposing an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the transaction date.

The Schemes measure investments in financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Management applies judgement in
selecting valuation techniques where there is no market price available for an instrument. Further details on the determination of fair values of financial
instruments is set out in No%e).

Judgements

(i) The Schemes meet the definition criteria of an investment entity und®8BAAR and therefore are required to measure their interests in controlled
entities at fair value through profit or loss. The criteria which define an investment entity are as follows:

(a) An entity that obtains funds froone or more investors for the purpose of providing those investors with investment services;

(b) An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for retumapital appreciation, investment income or

both; and

(c) An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Significant accounting judgements, estimates, or assumptions (continu

(ii) The Schemes have assessed whether their investments in unlisted registered managed investment schemes should be classified as structured entities.
A structured entity is an entity in which voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding control. The Schemes have considered the voting
rights and other similar rights and concluded on whether these rights are the dominant factor in determining control. The Schemes have concluded that
their investments in unlisted registered managed investment schemes meet the definition of structured entities as the voting rights of these unlisted
registered managed investment schemes are not substantive in

(i) Cash and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statements of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and short term deposits.

(i) Receivable:

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest, distributions, outstanding settlements and other income and are measured initially at fair value

plus transaction costs. Amounts are generally received within 30 days of being recorded as receivable. Given the short-term nature of most receivables,
the recoverable amount approximates fair value.

(k) Accounts payable and accrued expens

Payables include outstanding settlements and accrued expenses owing by the Schemes which are unpaid as at balance date. They are measured initially
at fair value plus transaction costs. Given the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount payable approximates fair value.

(1) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions during the year denominated in foreign currency have been translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. Overseas
investments and monetary items held, together with any accrued income, are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end.

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses on financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are included in the Statements of

Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as part of the ‘Changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss'.

(m) Income and expense

Revenue is brought to account on an accrual basis except where otherwise stated.

Dividend and distribution income, from listed securities and unlisted registered managed investment schemes, are recognised on the date the shares or
trust units are quoted ex dividend/distribution. Income on fixed interest securities and money market securities is recognised on an ex interest accrual
basis.

Interest income on discount securities is brought to account on a straight line basis and is derived from interest earned and amortised premium or
discount to face value on investments.

Changes in the fair value of investments are recognised as income and are determined as the difference between the fair value at year end or
consideration received (if sold during the year) and the fair value as at the prior year end or cost (if the investment was acquired during the year).
Expenses are brought to account on an accrual basis.

The Responsible Entity is entitled to receive a fee, calculated in accordance with the Schemes' Constitutions, for the provision of management services
to the Schemes. The Responsible Entity is entitled to be reimbursed, under the Schemes' Constitutions, for certain expenses incurred in administering
the Schemes. The amount reimbursed has been calculated in accordance with the Schemes' Constitutions.

Other expenses also include government duties and bank interest expense. Auditors' remuneration has not been charged against the Schemes' income as
this cost is borne by the Responsible Entity.

(n) Transfers to/from net assets attributable to unitholder

Unrealised gains and losses arising on movements in the fair value of assets, unrealised foreign currency movements on other assets, accrued dividends
and interest not yet payable to the Schemes are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders. They are included in the determination of
distributable income when assessable for taxation purposes. The taxable portion of realised capital gains is included in distributable income (net of any
realised capital losses) by transfer from net assets attributable to unitholders. Non assessable income and net capital losses carried forward are also
reflected as movements against components of net assets attributable to unitholders for the current fini

(0) Taxation

Under current legislation the Schemes are not subject to income tax as unitholders are presently entitled to the taxable income (including assessable
realised net capital gains), which is distributed each year.

The unit price is based upon fair values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised,
that portion of the gain that is subject to capital gains tax will be distributed.

Net realised capital losses are not distributed to unitholders, but are retained to be offset against any future realised capital gains. Where realised
assessable capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders as assessable income for taxation purposes.

(p) Distributions to unitholders

The incomeof the Schemes is accumulatetd reinvestedr paid to unitholders on the last Sunday of SepteniiEremberand March and the last day
of June, exceffor the Horizon 6 SharePortfolio, Global Share Fund, Platinu@lobal Fund, Horizon 7 Accelerat&towth Portfolio, Hedged Global
Share Fund, and InflatioRlus - Assertive Portfolio which reinvested or paid unitholders on last day of June only. The incowiethe Schemes may
also be accumulateahd paid to unitholders on other dates as deterntipdde Responsible Entity.

Undistributed income/(loss) includes income earned and expenses not yet paid at the last distribution day on 30 June 2016 and realised capital losses
which are retained to offset future realised capital gains. These are not distributed but held for distributions in future periods.

Distributable income does not include unrealised gains and losses arising on movements in the fair value of investments; as such, unrealised gains and
losses are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable or distributable until realised.

The Schemes distributions are expressed as cents per unit for the distribution period.
(q) Goods and services te

Responsible Entity fees and other expenses are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (‘GST’) recoverable from the Austr
Office (‘ATO’) as a reduced input tax credit (‘RITC’).
Creditors and accruals are stated with the amount of GST included.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Goods and services tax (continue
The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in payables in the Statements of Financial Position.

(r) Derecognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of financial instruments takes place when the Schemes no longer control the contractual rights of the financial instrument, which is
normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the instrument are passed through to an independent third party.

(s) Capital managemer

The Responsible Entity manages its net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, notwithstanding that net assets attributable to unitholders are
classified as a liability. The amount of net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Schemes are subject to daily
applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Responsible Entity monitors the level of daily applications and redemptions relative to the liquid assets in the Schemes.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Responsible Entity may return capital to unitholders. The Schemes do not have any externally
imposed capital requirements.

(t) Net assets attributable to unitholder

Units are redeemable at the unitholders' option and are classified as financial liabilities due to mandatory distributions. The units can be put back to the
Schemes at any time for cash based on the redemption price. The fair value of redeemable units is measured at the redemption amount that is payable
(based on the redemption unit price) at the end of the reporting period if unitholders exercised their right to put the units back to the Schemes.

(u) Application of accounting standard:

Changes in Accounting Policy

Since 1 July 2015, the Schemes have not adopted any new and amended Australian Accounting Standards that effected the financial statements.
Australian Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted by the
Schemes for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016. The impact of these standards and interpretations has been assessed, to the extent
applicable to the Schemes and are discussed below.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This standard makes changes to the way financial assets are classified for the purpose of determining their measurement basis. AASB 9 applies to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and will therefore apply to the Schemes from 1 July 2018. The Schemes do not intend to
early adopt AASB 9 as permitted by the standdride application of the standard is not expected to change the measurement basis of any of the
Schemes current financial instruments.

AASB 2015-2 Amendements to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure initiative: AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

These amendments clarify the materiality requirements in AASB 101. These amendments also clarify that specific line items in the statement of
comprehensive income and the statement of financial position may be disaggregated and that the entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements. These amendments are not expected to impact the Schemes' financial position or performance and become
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and will therefore apply to the Schemes from 1 July 2016.

NOTE 2 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Schemes have regular audits on the financial reports. The Responsible Entity pays the cost of the audit fees being $7,000 (2015: $7,000) for audit
and review of the financial reports, and $2,374 (2015: $2,374) for Compliance Plan audits.

NOTE 3 - DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions paid during the year by the Schemes were as follows:

Horizon 4 Balanced Horizon 3 Conservative Income Builder Inflation Plus - Moderate
Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit
2016
September 2,684 0.29 1,843 0.33 4,217 1.41 - -
December 4,211 0.45 2,298 0.40 6,990 2.33 793 0.31
March 3,952 0.42 2,450 0.42 4,798 1.60 - -
June 67,036 6.40 32,505 5.56 19,276 6.46 12,645 3.44
77,883 7.56 39,096 6.71 35,281 11.80 13,438 3.75
2015
September 2,914 0.34 1,651 0.34 4,136 1.50 - -
December 3,856 0.44 2,168 0.43 5,991 2.16 385 0.46
March 2,393 0.27 1,349 0.26 5,365 1.92 - -
June 32,872 3.64 14,054 2.62 37,923 13.40 9,269 5.85
42,035 4.69 19,222 3.65 53,415 18.98 9,654 6.31
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NOTE 3 -DISTRIBUTIONS (continued)

Inflation Plus - Assertive

Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - .
. . . . Portfolio
Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio
Class A
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit
201¢€
September 826 0.25 1,493 0.48 - - - -
December 1,342 0.40 1,533 0.48 924 0.42 - -
March 1,385 0.41 1,184 0.37 - - - -
June 27,486 7.88 18,098 5.50 7,294 2.57 29,242 8.12
31,039 8.94 22,308 6.83 8,218 2.99 29,242 8.12
201¢
September 819 0.26 1,510 0.59 - - - -
December 1,288 0.41 1,227 0.46 493 0.70 - -
March 896 0.28 1,172 0.43 - - - -
June 11,616 3.63 4,832 1.65 5,452 4.36 28,330 11.68
14,619 4.58 8,741 3.13 5,945 5.06 28,330 11.68
Inflation Plus - Assertive ~ Wholesale Diversified Wholesale Diversified
Portfolio Debt Fund Debt Fund Horizon 6 Share Portfolio
Class B Class A Class B
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit
201¢
September - - 2,110 1.09 23 0.78 - -
December - - 1,182 0.62 12 0.38 - -
March - - 1,013 0.53 8 0.26 - -
June 285 6.84 4,831 2.57 65 2.13 16,727 9.71
285 6.84 9,136 4.81 108 3.55 16,727 9.71
201¢
September - - 1,695 0.95 18 0.64 - -
December - - 822 0.45 5 0.18 - -
March - - 486 0.26 - 0.01 - -
June 417 10.18 5,000 2.61 63 2.17 6,715 4.35
417 10.18 8,003 4.27 86 3.00 6,715 4.35
Property Securities Fund Global Share Fund Australian Share Fund Platinum Global Fund
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit
201¢€
September 1,423 0.68 - - 239 0.36 - -
December 1,071 0.51 - - 692 1.08 - -
March 1,096 0.53 - - 552 0.86 - -
June 2,902 1.41 20,448 15.99 2,467 3.84 6,553 7.55
6,492 3.13 20,448 15.99 3,950 6.14 6,553 7.55
201t
September 1,815 0.79 - - 304 0.43 - -
December 703 0.33 - - 782 1.11 - -
March 2,142 1.02 - - 354 0.52 - -
June 1,435 0.69 3,068 2.15 2,537 3.84 7,499 7.41
6,095 2.83 3,068 2.15 3,977 5.90 7,499 7.41
Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio Global Property Fund Global Property Fund Australian Share Index
Class A Class B Fund
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit
201¢€
September 407 0.46 - - - - 294 0.76
December 325 0.38 a7 0.04 2 0.04 698 1.66
March 252 0.29 12 0.01 - - 383 0.89
June 1,209 1.46 6,585 5.80 322 6.59 783 1.69
2,193 2.59 6,644 5.85 324 6.63 2,158 5.00
201¢
September 534 0.54 - - - - 205 0.75
December 405 0.43 21 0.02 1 0.02 466 1.50
March 278 0.30 - - - - 274 0.84
June 796 0.87 2,300 2.05 147 2.36 776 2.20
2,013 2.14 2,321 2.07 148 2.38 1,721 5.29
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NOTE 3 - DISTRIBUTIONS (continued)

201¢
September
December
March
June

201t
September
December
March
June

201¢
September
December
March
June

201t
September
December
March
June

Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share

Hedged Global Share Australian Share Growth

Growth Portfolio Fund Class A Fund Class B Style Fund
$'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit $'000 c/unit Whole c/unit
Dollars $
- - - - - - 8,656 0.30
- - - - - - 318,64z 12.23
4,174 14.14 1,703 5.15 68 4.84 - -
4,174 14.14 1,703 5.15 68 4.84 327,29¢ 12.53
- - - - - - 18,706 0.50
- - - - - - 49,731 1.40
- - - - - - 13,449 0.43
1,224 4.67 246 0.89 15 0.85 113,334 3.88
1,224 4.67 246 0.89 15 0.85 195,220 6.21

Australian Share Value

Global Share Growth

Global Share Value Style

Style Fund Style Fund Fund
Whole c/unit Whole c/unit Whole c/unit
Dollars $ Dollars $ Dollars $
33,964 0.52 - - - -
40,269 0.92 1,327,181 65.37 - -
74,233 144 1,327,181 65.37 - -
27,323 0.43 - - - -
52,644 0.81 - - - -
33,490 0.50 - - - -
230,477 3.48 87,141 3.37 223,861 1.89
343,934 5.22 87,141 3.37 223,861 1.89

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted managed investmen
schemes
Units held in unlisted managed

investment schemes
Total financial assets designate

as held at fair value through
profit or loss

Unlisted managed investmen
schemes

Units held in unlisted managed
investment schemes

Total financial assets designate
as held at fair value through
profit or loss

Horizon 4 Balanced

Horizon 3 Conservative

. Inflation Plus - Moderate
Income Builder

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,095,089 _ 1,002,556 612,763 592,584 485,220 516,875 374,067 167,266
1,095,089 _ 1,002,556 612,763 592,584 485,220 516,875 374,067 167,266
Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive

Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
364,393 359,820 336,646 312,220 291,821 130,641 316,301 236,947
364,393 359,820 336,646 312,220 291,821 130,641 316,301 236,947
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NOTE 4 -FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Diversified Debt Fund  Horizon 6 Share Portfolio Property Securities Fund Global Share Fund

201¢ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Unlisted managed investmen
schemes
Units held in unlisted managed
investment schemes 198,213 199,897 171,851 169,063 146,038 123,682 116,415 153,343
Total financial assets designate
as held at fair value through
profit or loss 198,213 199,897 171,851 169,063 146,038 123,682 116,415 153,343

Australian Share Fund Platinum Global Fund  Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio  Global Property Fund

201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Unlisted managed investmen
schemes
Units held in unlisted managed
investment schemes 93,912 64,785 89,997 120,447 83,939 93,069 77,587 79,701
Total financial assets designate
as held at fair value through
profit or loss 93,912 64,785 89,997 120,447 83,939 93,069 77,587 79,701
Australian Share Index Horizon 7 Accelerated Hedged Global Share Australian Share Growth
Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201¢€ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $ooo ~ Whole  Whole

Dollars $ Dollars 4

Unlisted managed investmen

schemes

Units held in unlisted managed

investment schemes 56,946 44,993 33,934 35,066 26,630 25,121 - 3,444,411
Total financial assets designate

as held at fair value through

profit or loss 56,946 44,993 33,934 35,066 26,630 25,121 - 3,444,411
Australian Share Value Global Share Growth  Global Share Value Style
Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢€ 201¢ 201¢€ 201¢ 201¢€ 201¢
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole

Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars 4

Unlisted managed investmen

schemes

Units held in unlisted managt

investment schemes - 5,931,604 - 4,002,005 - 12,946,985
Total financial assets designate

as held at fair value through

profit or loss - 5,931,604 - 4,002,005 - 12,946,985

Units held in unlisted managed investment schemes are detafl@dg.in
NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Horizon 4 Balanced Horizon 3 Conservative Income Builder Inflation Plus - Moderate
Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing from Responsible
entity 834 763 480 452 492 540 - -
Other receivables 5 7 3 4 6 3 3 4
839 770 483 456 498 543 3 4
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES (continued)

Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive
Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing from Responsik
entity 290 284 - - - - - -
Other receivables 2 1 1 3 3 4 3 3
292 285 1 3 3 4 3 3

Diversified Debt Fund

Horizon 6 Share Portfolio Property Securities Fund Global Share Fund

201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing from Responsit
entity - - 146 140 - - - 19
Other receivables 3 1 1 3 1 1 1 2
3 1 147 143 1 1 1 21

Australian Share Fund

Platinum Global Fund  Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio  Global Property Fund

201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing from Responsik
entity - - 53 71 - - - -
Other receivables - - - 1 1 1 1 1
- - 53 72 1 1 1 1

Australian Share Index

Horizon 7 Accelerated Hedged Global Share  Australian Share Growth

Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
\ ) \ \ . \ Whole Whole
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Dollars $ Dollars 4
Amounts owing from Responsit
entity - - - - - - - 51
Other receivables - - - - - 3 - -
- - - - - 3 - 51
Australian Share Value Global Share Growth  Global Share Value Style
Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201¢
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars $ Dollars §
Amounts owing from Responsit
entity - - - - - -
Other receivable - 109 - 64 - 170
- 109 - 64 - 170
NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & ACCRUED EXPENSES
Horizon 4 Balanced Horizon 3 Conservative Income Builder Inflation Plus - Moderate
Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015 201¢€ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing to Responsible
Entity - - - - - - 67 42
Other payables 1 5 1 2 2 2 3 1
Distributions payable 67,036 32,872 32,504 14,054 19,276 37,923 12,645 9,269
67,037 32,877 32,505 14,056 19,278 37,925 12,715 9,312
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NOTE 6- ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income

Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive

Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing to Responsible
Entity - - 34 89 43 29 72 91
Other payables 1 3 - - - 1 - 2
Distributions payable 27,486 11,616 18,098 4,832 7,294 5,452 29,527 28,747
27,487 11,619 18,132 4,921 7,337 5,482 29,599 28,840

Diversified Debt Fund  Horizon 6 Share Portfolio

201¢ 2015 201¢

Property Securities Fund Global Share Fund

2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing to Responsible
Entity 20 46 - - 13 22 17 -
Other payables - 2 - 3 - 1 - 1
Distributions payable 4,896 5,063 16,727 6,715 2,903 1,435 20,447 3,068
4,916 5,111 16,727 6,718 2,916 1,458 20,464 3,069

Australian Share Fund Platinum Global Fund

201¢ 2015 201¢

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio  Global Property Fund

2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts owing to Responsible
Entity 23 27 - - 8 16 6 25
Other payables - 2 - 1 - 6 - 1
Distributions payable - 2,537 6,553 7,499 1,208 796 6,907 2,447
23 2,566 6,553 7,500 1,216 818 6,913 2,473

Australian Share Index Horizon 7 Accelerated

Hedged Global Share Australian Share Growth

Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201€ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015 201¢ 2015
\ , \ , \ \ Whole Whole
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Dollars $ Dollars 4
Amounts owing to Responsible
Entity 4 6 9 16 6 10 - 1,520
Other payables - - - . - 1 - 280
Distributions payable 784 776 4,174 1,224 1,771 261 - 113,334
788 782 4,183 1,240 1,777 272 - 115,134

Australian Share Value Global Share Growth

Global Share Value Style

Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole
Dollars $ Dollars 4 Dollars $ Dollars { Dollars $ Dollars 4
Amounts owing to Responsik
Entity - 2,770 - 2,108 - 6,328
Other payable - 246 - 429 - -
Distributions payab - 230,471 - 87,141 - 223,861
- 233,493 - 89,678 - 230,189
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NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES
(a) Responsible Entit

The Responsible Entity of each of the Schemes is MLC Investments Limited ABN 30 002 641 661, whose immediate and ultimate holding
companies are MLC Holdings Limited ABN 32 003 113 068 and National Australia Bank Limited ABN 12 004 044 937 respectively.

The Responsible Entity is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

(b) Key management personni

Directors

The names of persons who were Directors of MLC Investments Limited at any time during the financial year were as follows:

Name Appointment / Resignation Dat¢
S C Birkensleigh Appointed 9 September 2015
J G Duffield Appointed 24 August 2011

P Gupta Appointed 1 September 2012
G J Mulcahy Appointed 7 July 2014

In addition to the Directors noted above, the Responsible Entity is considered to be a Key Management Personnel of the Schemes.

Key management personnel are paid by a related party of the Responsible Entity. Payments made from the Schemes to the Responsible Entity do not
include any amounts directly attributable to key management personnel remuneration.

(c) Other related party transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the Directors of MLC Investments Limited, or their Director related entities, may invest into or withdraw from the Schemes.
These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors.

(d) Amounts payable to/(receivable from) the Responsible Enti
The net amount of payables to MLC Investments Limited by the Schemes at balance date are shown in the table below:

201¢€ 201t
$ $
Horizon 4 Balanced Portfol (834,303 (763,064
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfc (480,170 (452,218
Income Builde (492,049 (540,307
Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfol 66,82¢ 41,91¢
Horizon 5 Growth Portfoli (289,949 (283,630
Horizon 2 Income Portfol 34,39: 88,85¢
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfa 43,417 28,93¢
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfol 71,540 90,74¢
Diversified Debt Fun 20,40( 45,87¢
Horizon 6 Share Portfol (146,092 (140,074
Property Securities Fu 12,515 21,92¢
Global Share Fur 16,586 (19,421
Australian Share Fui 23,08¢ 27,15:¢
Platinum Global Fur (52,628 (71,381
Horizon 1 Bond Portfoli 7,93: 15,64¢
Global Property Fur 6,22( 24,79¢
Australian Share Index Fu 3,90¢ 6,00(
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfc 9,287 15,81:
Hedged Global Share Fu 5,64z 9,52t
Australian Share Growth Style Fu - 1,52(C
Australian Share Value Style Fu - 2,77C
Global Share Growth Style Fu - 2,10¢
Global Share Value Style Fu - 6,328

(e) Responsible Entity’s fee

The Responsible Entity's fees have been calculated in accordance with the Schemes’ Constitutions. Total fees paid and payable (net of rebates where
applicable) are as follows:

201¢€ 201t
$ $
Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio* - -
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolio* - -
Income Builder* - -
Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio 1,076,191 399,548
Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio* - -
Horizon 2 Income Portfolio 1,332,95 1,225,98¢
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfolio 1,708,40: 1,201,26¢
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolio 815,37( 299,07¢
Diversified Debt Fund 695,33¢ 661,68!
Horizon 6 Share Portfolio* - -
Property Securities Fund 415,87" 381,89t
Global Share Fund* - -
Australian Share Fund 316,97 352,252
Platinum Global Fund* - -
Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio 256,56! 404,86€
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201¢€ 201t
$ $

(e) Responsible Entity’s fees (continue

Global Property Fur 366,77: 369,244
Australian Share Index Fu 121,08( 97,007
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfc 266,57 263,73€
Hedged Global Share Fu 142,590 135,09¢€
Australian Share Growth Style Ft 9,434 30,010
Australian Share Value Style FL 15,662 43,154
Global Share Growth Style Fund 11,338 22,148
Global Share Value Style Fund 26,942 78,459

*The Schemes received a rebate from the Responsible Entity to reduce the effect of management fee paid.

(f) Expense reimbursement

The Responsible Entity is entitled, under the Schemes’ Constitutions, to be reimbursed for certain expenses incurred in administering the Schemes.
The basis on which the expenses are reimbursable is defined in the Constitutions. There were no expense reimbursements during the year
(2015:Nil).

(9) Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The Schemes' maximum exposure to loss from their investments in unlisted managed investment schemes, which have been assessed to be
structured entities, is restricted to their fair value which are disclosed in Note 7(h). The Schemes have not sponsored or provided support, financial
or otherwise to the unlisted managed investment schemes they hold.

(h) Related party investments

The Schemes may purchase and sell units in other unlisted managed investment schemes managed by MLC Investments Limited or its related
parties in the ordinary course of business at application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the Constitutions.

Details of both shares in National Australia Bank Limited and units in other managed investment schemes operated by the Responsible Entity held
by the Schemes are set out below. Cash and cash equivalents in the Statements of Financial Position for all the Schemes are held with the National
Australia Bank Limited.

The principal activities of all the below named Schemes are to invest and transact in money market securities, listed equities, fixed interest
securities, unlisted managed investment schemes, unlisted property trusts, other debt instruments and derivatives in accordance with the provisions
of the Schemes’ Constitutions. Investment activities may include the use of hedging instruments to reduce the volatility of investment returns.

The Schemes are unlisted registered managed investment schemes and along with their related parties are domiciled in Australia.

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Ealr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
. Scheme investment received
units
% $ $
Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio
2016
MasterKey Unit Trust Balanced Portfolio 807,228,284 69.37 1,095,089,119 68,584,239
2015
MasterKey Unit Trust Balanced Portfolio 689,902,186 58.49 1,002,555,507 33,240,980
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolio
2016
MasterKey Unit Trust Conservative Growth Portfolio 620,327,541 80.28 612,763,267 33,357,068
2015
MasterKey Unit Trust Conservative Growth Portfolio 569,042,611 77.45 592,584,472 14,153,712
Income Builder
2016
MasterKey Unit Trust Incomebuilder 203,998,943 21.11 485,220,054 34,065,636
2015
MasterKey Unit Trust Incomebuilder 193,658,737 20.36 516,874,974 45,104,196
Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio
2016
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. 59 3,661,963 29.95 374,067,094 15,273,800
2015
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. 59 1,587,301 38.22 167,266,071 9,589,470
Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio
2016
MasterKey Unit Trust Growth Portfolio 306,519,087 70.66 364,393,262 27,614,153
2015
MasterKey Unit Trust Growth Portfolio 277,951,550 67.65 359,819,956 11,323,409
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(h) Related party investments (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
units Scrleml investment received
% $ $
Horizon 2 Income Portfolio
201¢€
Antares Enhanced Cash Ti 41,468,92 0.5¢€ 42,682,93 864,998
MasterKey Unit Trust Incomebuilc 23,711,02 2.4t 56,397,66 3,593,78I
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. ! 167,43( 2.6¢ 17,150,61 600,46!
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. ° 33,71 0.71 3,395,191 77,06¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 165,94¢ 1.91 16,982,18 257,94¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 333,11 1.82 33,510,30 1,366,79!
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 101,05: 1.81 10,904,19 188,29¢
WM Pool - Global Properties Trt 124,46( 1.84 13,580,47 1,166,15!
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (All) Tru 57,31: 0.2t 6,002,90! 558,78(
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (Short) T 1,054,36! 5.2¢ 107,861,80 3,098,98:
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Tr 44 71( 0.4¢ 3,823,33! 233,38¢
WM Sector - Global Equities (Unhedged) Ti 151,18! 0.3C 17,441,83 3,635,57:
WM Sector - Property Securities Tr 81,70 0.8z 6,912,21. 685,02:
67,494,93 336,645,66 16,327,253
201¢
Antares Enhanced Cash Ti 32,896,15 0.6€ 33,860,40 649,36:
MasterKey Unit Trust Incomebuilc 13,534,10 1.4z 36,122,51 2,926,51
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. ! 60,27¢ 2.8t 6,297,59! 338,85!
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. * 23,61: 1.0t 2,373,55. 55,50¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. - - - -
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 304,00: 1.3€ 31,469,19 1,541,451
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 33,93! 0.6C 3,697,32 196,08
WM Pool - Global Properties Trt 113,90: 1.07 12,718,53 366,73
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (All) Tru 205,19! 0.5¢ 21,333,98 956,26
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (Short) Tr 1,171,97! 4.2¢ 119,573,58 2,262,711
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Tt 33,01¢ 0.3€ 3,094 ,47! 31,54
WM Sector - Global Equities (Unhedged) Ti 87,84¢ 0.1f 12,912,28 281,48:
WM Sector - Property Securities Tr 402,39¢ 3.7¢ 28,766,26 1,327,55!
48,866,422 312,219,70 10,934,06
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolic
201¢€
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. ! 2,848,86: 45.5¢ 291,821,28 9,130,36!
201¢
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. ! 1,250,45! 59.0¢ 130,641,18 5,986,73.
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfolio
201¢€
WM Pool - LTAR Part 1 Ns Tru 3,752,92! 63.2:2 316,301,28 35,767,617
201¢
WM Pool - LTAR Part 1 Ns Tru 2,543,88: 64.97 236,947,29 32,334,56
Diversified Debt Fund
201¢
WM Pool - Diversified Debt (All) Trus 1,794,31. 7.717 187,936,68 9,790,87!
WM Pool Fixed Interest Trust No 95,23 171 10,276,67 185,77
1,889,54! 198,213,36 9,976,65:
201¢
WM Pool - Diversified Debt (All) Tru 1,808,98; 5.21 188,078,55 8,042,90!
WM Pool Fixed Interest Trust No __ 108,460 1.91 11,818,42 673,45¢
191744 199,896,97 8,716,36!
Horizon 6 Share Portfolic
201¢€
MasterKey Unit Trust Share Porttc 183,284,23 64.8: 171,850,59 15,065,70
201t
MasterKey Unit Trust Share Portfc 162,309,32 60.52 169,063,18 5,078,08!

-30-



MLC Investment Trust
Notes to the financial statemen:
For the year ended 30 June 20:

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(h) Related party investments (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
- Schemi investment received
units o
o $ $
Property Securities Func
201¢€
WM Sector - Property Securities Tr 1,726,14 17.62 146,037,93 6,897,73!
201¢
WM Sector - Property Securities Tr 1,730,13! 16.1¢ 123,682,05 6,459,91
Global Share Func
201¢€
MasterKey Unit Trust Global Share Ft 6,102,39; 19.7¢ 9,408,31! 4,171,87!
WM Sector - Global Equities (Unhedged) Ti 927,52° 1.82 107,006,68 22,196,47
7,029,91! 116,415,00 26,368,35.
201t
MasterKey Unit Trust Global Share Ft 28,720,79 54.1¢ 52,433,17 608,40t
WM Sector - Global Equities (Unhedged) Ti 686,54¢ 1.1% 100,909,99 2,199,79:
29,407,34 153,343,16 2,808,200
Australian Share Fund
201¢€
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. « 915,47 7.64 93,912,18 4,899,48
201¢
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. « 598,85{ 4.7¢ 64,785,16 4,325,571
Platinum Global Fund
201¢€
MasterKey Unit Trust MLC-Platinum Global Fu 51,355,52 9.7¢ 89,996,60 10,410,29
201¢
MasterKey Unit Trust MLC-Platinum Global Fu 57,294,63 10.7¢ 120,447,30 16,550,08
Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio
201¢€
Antares Enhanced Cash Ti 20,588,75 0.2¢ 21,191,48 512,630
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 16,64¢ 0.3C 1,796,59! 32,47¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 41,88 0.3¢ 4,195,91! 66,277
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No - - - 1,40(C
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 82,18¢ 0.9t 8,410,44. 244,17
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 50,76¢ 0.3¢ 4,864,93: 273,33¢
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (Short) Tr 425,027 2.1z 43,480,06 1,235,00!
21,205,226 83,939,44 2,365,298
201t
Antares Enhanced Cash Ti 21,628,86. 0.44 22,262,84 664,64!
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 20,22t 0.3¢ 2,203,86! 147,50
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 46,46: 0.52 4,677,10: 28¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No 1,931 1.24 76,204 117,04¢
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 93,01 2.0z 9,492,291 278,71
WM Pool - Fixed Interest Trust No. 56,61 0.5¢ 5,661,69; 33,691
WM Sector - Diversified Debt (Short) Tni A77,27¢ 1.7% 48,695,25 1,039,20.
22,324,38 93,069,26 2,281,09!
Global Property Fund
201¢€
WM Pool - Global Properties Trt 711,05¢ 10.5C 77,587,38 6,970,28
201t
WM Pool - Global Properties Trt 713,78: 6.74 79,701,26 2,471,48
Australian Share Index Func
201¢
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. < 46,336,84 3.31 56,945,71 2,276,53!
201¢
WM Pool - Equities Trust No. < 35,141,91 2.7C 44,992 57 1,807,67:
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(h) Related party investments (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Numbgr of Interest held in the Ealr value of D|str|put|ons
units Scheme investment received
% $ $
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolio
2016
MLC Horizon 7 Trust 26,228,269 5.36 27,281,465 3,931,490
WM Pool - LTAR Part 1 Ns Trust 20,362 0.52 1,716,141 233,745
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Trust 57,726 0.63 4,936,357 340,726
26,306,357 33,933,963 4,505,961
2015
MLC Horizon 7 Trust 23,030,042 471 27,957,550 1,242,475
WM Pool - LTAR Part 1 Ns Trust 21,933 0.56 2,042,898 254,815
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Trust 54,049 0.58 5,065,452 51,160
23,106,024 35,065,900 1,548,450
Hedged Global Share Fund
2016
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Trust 311,417 3.39 26,630,434 1,772,119
2015
WM Sector - Global Equities (Hedged) Trust 268,044 2.90 25,120,791 261,047
Australian Share Growth Style Fund
2016
WM Sector - Australian Equities Growth Trust - - - 53,117
2015
WM Sector - Australian Equities Growth Trust 28,055 5.88 3,444,411 224,472
Australian Share Value Style Fund
2016
WM Sector - Australian Equities Value Trust - - - 88,315
2015
WM Sector - Australian Equities Value Trust 57,988 10.58 5,931,604 385,961
Global Share Growth Style Fund
2016
WM Sector - Global Equities Growth Trust - - - 482,478
2015
WM Sector - Global Equities Growth Trust 23,564 13.83 4,002,005 103,372
Global Share Value Style Fund
2016
WM Sector - Global Equities Value Trust - - - -
2015
WM Sector - Global Equities Value Trust 105,936 27.67 12,946,985 299,844

(i) Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Schemes by MLC Investments Limited and its related parties or other Schemes managed by MLC Investments Limited
and its related parties are set out below:

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Numper of Interest held in the Fairva]ueof Distriputions
units Scheme investment received
% $ $

Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 15,379,271 1.47 16,071,306 1,158,351
Masterkey Investment Services 237,970,088 22.72 248,678,250 17,998,518
MLC Limited 99,494,166 9.50 103,971,198 6,367,627
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 726,968 0.07 759,680 53,606
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 143,371,556 13.69 149,822,979 10,898,842
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 358,116,482 34.19 374,230,982 26,938,415
2015
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 13,426,359 1.49 14,948,077 614,842
Masterkey Investment Services 223,771,252 24.78 249,133,064 10,314,027
MLC Limited - - - -
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 501,037 0.06 557,823 21,989
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 139,478,930 15.44 155,287,209 6,547,358
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 339,543,673 37.60 378,026,913 15,812,690
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(i) Unitholder investing activities (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and itsrelated parties Number of Interest held in the Ealr value of D|str|put|ons
Units Scr(m)eme investment received
% $ $

Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfalio
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 9,074,774 155 9,521,596 609,762
Masterkey Investment Services 198,505,705 33.96 208,279,690 13,247,812
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 346,921 0.06 364,002 23,218
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 115,991,397 19.84 121,702,558 7,728,638
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 219,885,606 37.61 230,712,290 14,732,693
2015
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 9,045,692 1.69 10,014,292 319,514
Masterkey Investment Services 172,616,792 32.18 191,100,341 6,155,525
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 335,948 0.06 371,921 12,019
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 101,997,940 19.00 112,919,728 3,642,453
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 212,908,893 39.69 235,706,860 7,647,889
Income Builder
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 3,348,555 112 5,506,019 389,805
Masterkey Investment Services 158,968,474 53.28 261,391,334 18,688,546
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 2,077,904 0.70 3,416,690 398,154
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 56,769,995 19.03 93,346,714 6,672,348
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 55,786,947 18.70 91,730,292 6,604,534
2015
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 2,929,930 1.04 5,363,306 554,079
Masterkey Investment Services 142,936,330 50.51 261,648,321 26,819,594
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 6,027,493 213 11,033,468 1,156,130
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 54,039,736 19.10 98,921,011 10,292,695
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 57,006,290 20.14 104,351,358 10,755,812
Inflation Plus - M oder ate Portfolio
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 245,917 0.07 254,484 8,780
Masterkey Investment Services 61,552,977 16.74 63,697,382 2,266,675
MLC Investment Trusts 109 - 113 4
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 114,634,734 31.19 118,628,420 4,225,134
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 173,092,069 47.09 179,122,312 6,284,089
2015
AUSMAQ Systems Limited - - - -
Masterkey Investment Services 28,657,655 18.09 30,432,714 1,760,283
MLC Investment Trusts 103 - 110 7
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 60,445,866 38.15 64,189,891 3,674,721
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 63,769,899 40.25 67,719,816 3,885,273
Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 1,360,028 0.39 1,398,084 119,387
Masterkey Investment Services 72,219,030 20.70 74,239,840 6,472,171
MLC Limited 3,986,009 1.14 4,097,544 314,097
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 319,958 0.09 328,911 28,591
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 42,461,248 12.17 43,649,386 3,810,311
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 93,036,532 26.67 95,639,852 8,277,467
2015
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 1,151,024 0.36 1,289,400 53,476
Masterkey Investment Services 67,394,919 21.06 75,497,148 3,069,828
MLC Limited - - - -
National Nominees (Australia) Limited 317,656 0.10 355,845 13,602
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 42,346,159 13.23 47,437,022 1,934,939
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 84,006,404 26.25 94,105,669 3,815,771
Horizon 2 Income Portfolio
2016
AUSMAQ Systems Limited 897,153 0.27 919,946 62,887
Masterkey Investment Services 145,569,127 44.24 149,267,459 9,921,804
MLC Investment Trusts 3,110 - 3,189 212
MLC Limited 8,135,664 247 8,342,358 447,462
MLC Navigator Investment Plan 57,460,895 17.46 58,920,747 3,959,938
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limited 83,048,909 25.24 85,158,851 5,656,994
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(i) Unitholder investing activities (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
units Scrleml investment received
% $ $

Horizon 2 Income Portfolio (continued;
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 788,19° 0.27 843,64! 22,30«
Masterkey Investment Servic 133,118,422 45.4¢ 142,483,04 4,015,26:
MLC Investment Trus 3,02t - 3,23¢ 94
MLC Limited - - - -
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 56,603,20. 19.3: 60,585,13 1,755,37;
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 77,674,06 26.52 83,138,28 2,372,35
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolic
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 1,137,44! 0.4C 1,179,34i 34,88:
Masterkey Investment Servic 56,195,64 19.8( 58,265,68 1,644,25
MLC Investment Trus 107 - 111 3
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 94,153,07 33.17% 97,621,32 2,744,26'
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 118,166,90 41.6< 122,519,73 3,387,74i
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 1,284,01! 1.02 1,353,21: 55,98t
Masterkey Investment Servic 26,945,42 21.5¢ 28,397,46 1,282,06!
MLC Investment Trus 10& 0.0C 10€ 5
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 45,927,75 36.7¢ 48,402,72 2,201,75!
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 45,682,50 36.5¢ 48,144,25 2,172,65:
Inflation Plus Assertive Portfolio
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 5,397,88! 1.4¢ 4,774,56 438,30¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 40,517,19 11.1: 35,838,48 3,236,711
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 175,645,34 48.22 155,362,74 14,262,40
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 108,792,37 29.8¢ 96,229,60 8,833,94.
P K Gupti 529,70: 0.1t 468,53¢ 43,01:
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite - - - -
Masterkey Investment Servic 26,012,49 10.5¢ 25,003,61 2,976,80!
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 138,834,82 56.2¢ 133,450,222 16,215,90
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 61,292,48 24.8¢ 58,915,29 7,158,96;
P K Gupti - - - -
Diversified Debt Fund
201¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 24,767,82 12.97 25,779,90 1,195,36:
MLC Investment Trus' 14¢ - 15& 7
National Nominees (Australia) Limit: 9,239,221 4.84 9,616,76! 449,41¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 54,064,57 28.3( 56,273,79 2,697,741
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 99,793,84 52.2¢ 103,871,68 4,742,451
201t
Masterkey Investment Servic 26,845,47 13.81 27,758,56! 1,062,85
MLC Investment Trus 142 - 147 6
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 9,459,16: 4.8¢ 9,780,89! 385,00¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 59,797,95 30.7¢ 61,831,84 2,572,41
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 94,828,84 48.71 98,054,24. 3,939,94
Horizon 6 Share Portfolic
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 59,58¢ 0.0 59,16: 5,78¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 66,873,35 38.82 66,392,47 6,493,40.
MLC Limited 10,175,21 5.91 10,102,04 988,01:
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 36,788,01 21.3¢ 36,523,47 3,572,111
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 42,777,92 24.8: 42,470,31 4,153,73
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 40,757 0.0¢ 44,84 1,77:
Masterkey Investment Servic 64,037,66. 41.4¢ 70,459,14 2,785,63i
MLC Limited - - - -
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 34,828,47 22.5¢ 38,320,96 1,515,03!
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 41,660,24 26.9¢ 45,837,79 1,812,22.
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(i) Unitholder investing activities (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
units Scrleml investment received
% $ $

Property Securities Func
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 915,73« 0.44 649,09( 27,75
Masterkey Investment Servic 28,077,95 13.6¢ 19,902,21 874,04°
MLC Limited 4,948,63 2.4C 3,507,68! 69,77¢
National Nominees (Australia) Limit: 4,271 - 3,027 134
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 32,202,95 15.6¢ 22,826,10 1,035,66!
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 75,316,51 36.5¢ 53,385,86 2,396,33;
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 850,37: 0.41 508,73! 27,93¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 27,063,55 13.0z2 16,190,79 747,52:
MLC Limited - - - -
National Nominees (Australia) Limit: 4,271 0.01 2,55t 121
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 32,885,20 15.8: 19,673,60 1,053,82
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 78,561,69 37.7¢ 46,999,60 2,281,011
Global Share Func
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 376,64! 0.2¢ 338,69« 60,22¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 14,739,70 11.5: 13,254,52. 2,356,87!
MLC Limited 3,730,90:i 2.92 3,354,97! 596,57.
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 2,968,53 2.3z 2,669,421 474,66¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 42,090,45 32.91 37,849,38 6,730,26.
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 43,825,46 34.27 39,409,58 7,007,69;
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 642,97¢ 0.4t 693,75 13,82«
Masterkey Investment Servic 14,661,67 10.27 15,819,61 315,22¢
MLC Limited - - - -
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 7,838,991 5.4¢ 8,458,10; 168,53¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 49,255,322 34.52 53,145,39 1,058,98!
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 48,040,72 33.6¢ 51,834,87 1,032,871
Australian Share Fund
201¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 28,015,60 27.9¢ 26,421,00 1,693,46
MLC Limited 35,879,26! 35.8¢ 33,837,07 -
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 3,881 - 3,66¢ 23¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 16,779,71 16.7¢ 15,824,64 1,052,85:
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 17,345,02 17.3¢ 16,357,78 1,047,39.
201t
Masterkey Investment Servic 27,954,86 42.31 27,517,45 1,659,70i
MLC Limited - - - -
National Nominees (Australia) Limit: 3,887 0.01 3,82¢ 22¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 18,377,73( 27.8:2 18,090,17( 1,121,29¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 17,043,51 25.8( 16,776,83 1,037,59i
Platinum Global Fund
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 2,052,29i 2.3€ 2,137,65! 154,94¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 1,470,76. 1.6¢ 1,531,93 111,04
National Nominees (Australia) Limit: 7,16(C 0.01 7,45¢ 541
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 12,403,74 14.2¢ 12,919,64 936,48:
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 25,527,04. 29.41] 26,588,78 1,927,29;
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 1,937,65! 1.91 2,317,70. 143,58(
Masterkey Investment Servic 1,590,07. 1.57 1,901,94 117,82:
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 7,16( 0.01 8,56¢ 531
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 14,654,29 14.4¢ 17,528,55. 1,085,88.
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 28,602,71 28.2¢ 34,212,79 2,119,46

-35-



MLC Investment Trust
Notes to the financial statemen:
For the year ended 30 June 20:

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(i) Unitholder investing activities (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
units Scrleml investment received
% $ $

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio
201¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 22,518,15 27.21 22,988,00 573,81(
MLC Investment Trus' 3,00¢ 0.01 3,072 77
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 35,102,17 42.41 35,834,60 959,86¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 23,854,42. 28.8: 24,352,15 624,84¢
201t
Masterkey Investment Servic 20,846,65 22.7¢ 21,337,03 428,38
MLC Investment Trus' 2,951 0.01 3,021 63
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 44,188,93 48.3( 45,228,41. 1,010,52
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 24,832,26 27.1¢ 25,416,40 539,78¢
Global Property Fund
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 14,955,91 12.6: 9,848,05; 876,55¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 17,083,37 14.4: 11,248,92 1,038,14;
MLC Investment Trus 18t - 122 11
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 7,101,79i 6.0C 4,676,33! 415,58
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 27,477,17 23.2C 18,092,94 1,608,00;
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 51,263,42 43.2¢ 33,755,52 2,998,84!
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 17,925,89 15.1¢ 12,165,64 371,12!
MLC Investment Trus' 17¢ 0.01 122 4
Masterkey Investment Servic 17,238,86 14.5¢ 11,699,37 375,99
National Nominees (Australia) Limit 7,750,68! 6.5¢€ 5,260,10! 160,42¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 28,226,05 23.8¢ 19,155,97 584,07.
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 46,686,57 39.4: 31,684,44 965,71
Australian Share Index Func
201¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 43,081,42 92.8¢ 53,212,34 2,102,69!
MLC Investment Trus 11¢ - 147 6
MLC Limited 2,824,70! 6.0¢ 3,488,95! 47,73¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 472,04¢ 1.0z 583,05! 7,97¢
201t
Masterkey Investment Servic 35,238,19 100.0(¢ 45,254,22 1,720,87!
MLC Investment Trus 114 0.01 14¢€ 6
MLC Limited - - - -
MLC Navigator Investment Pli - - - -
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolic
201¢
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 47,74¢ 0.1€ 55,881 6,752
Masterkey Investment Servic 9,622,59 32.5¢ 11,262,65 1,360,63:
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 3,505,00! 11.87 4,102,39! 495,60¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 11,429,222 38.71 13,377,21 1,616,09;
201t
AUSMAQ Systems Limite 47,027 0.1¢ 63,67¢ 2,19¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 9,279,30: 35.4( 12,565,23 433,34
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 3,763,93I 14.3¢ 5,096,79: 175,77¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 9,502,25! 36.2¢ 12,867,14 443,75!
Hedged Global Share Fun
201¢
Masterkey Investment Servic 6,110,05 17.7:2 4,779,57; 310,27«
MLC Investment Trus 157 0.01 128 8
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 15,922,11. 46.1¢ 12,455,03 819,98¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 7,330,00. 21.2¢ 5,733,87 377,49}
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NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(i) Unitholder investing activities (continued)

MLC Investments Limited and its related parties Number of Interest held in the Falr value of Dlstrlb_utlons
units Scrleml investment received
% $ $
Hedged Global Share Fund (continuec
201t
Masterkey Investment Servic 6,464,461 21.9¢ 5,567,06! 56,83:
MLC Investment Trus 15E 0.01 134 1
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 9,549,95! 32.4% 8,224,22! 84,99¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 8,446,64. 28.6¢ 7,274,07. 75,17¢
Australian Share Growth Style Func
201¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pl - - - 33,178
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite - - - 66,218
MLC Investments Limite - - - 492
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi - - - 218,76¢
201t
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 342,434 11.72 407,381 22,526
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 601,14C 20.58 715,15¢ 38,718
MLC Investments Limite 3,801 0.13 4,522 235
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi 1,904,627 65.21 2,265,867 129,01¢€
Australian Share Value Style Func
201¢
National Australia Pooled Superannuation T - - - 161
MLC Navigator Investment Pl - - - 13,074
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite - - - 42,498
MLC Investments Limite - - - 64
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi - - - 17,919
201t
National Australia Pooled Superannuation T 11,164 0.17 10,041 583
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 1,143,88¢ 17.27 1,028,741 59,322
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 3,747,098 56.58 3,369,90¢ 190,421
MLC Investments Limite 4,304 0.06 3,871 224
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi 1,680,621 25.38 1,511,44¢ 91,458
Global Share Growth Style Func
201¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pl - - - 477,36¢
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite - - - 218,27C
MLC Investments Limite - - - 1,500
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi - - - 630,041
201t
MLC Navigator Investment Pl 902,901 35.00 1,414,407 30,428
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 557,942 21.58 874,02¢ 18,803
MLC Investments Limite 2,247 0.09 3,520 76
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi 1,122,69¢ 43.42 1,758,722 37,835
Global Share Value Style Funi
201¢
National Pooled Superannuation F - - - -
MLC Navigator Investment Pl - - - -
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite - - - -
MLC Investments Limite - - - -
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi
201t
National Pooled Superannuation F 7,525,84¢ 63.54 8,231,97¢ 142,23¢
MLC Navigator Investment Pli 1,424,53¢ 12.03 1,558,20( 26,924
NULIS Nominees (Australia) Limite 1,493,301 12.61 1,633,41¢ 28,223
MLC Investments Limite 2,695 0.02 2,947 51
MLC MasterKey Investment Servi 1,022,62¢ 8.63 1,118,57¢ 19,328
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NOTE 8 - INVESTMENT IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The Schemes meet the definition of an investment entity. Therefore they do not consolidate their underlying controll

The ownership and investment interest for the Schemes' underlying controlled entities are detailed in Note 7(h). The principal place of business of the
Responsible Entity is the MLC Building, 105-153 Miller St, North Sydney NSW 2060.

Restrictions

The Schemes receive income in the form of distributions and interest from their investments in unconsolidated controlled entities, and there are no
significant restrictions on the transfer of funds from these entities to the Scl

Support

The Schemes did not provide any support during the year (2015: nil) to their underlying controlled entities . The Schemes have no contractual
commitments or current intentions to provide any other financial or other support to their unconsolidated controlle

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Proces

The Schemes' activities expose them to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, equity ani

risk), liquidity and cash flow risk. The Schemes' overall risk management programme is aligned to the investment strategy of each Scheme as detailed in
their Constitution and Product Disclosure Statement. It focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Schemes' financial performance. The Responsible Entity monitors the risk management framework, which is performed internally and
reported on a quarterly basis.

(b) Credit Risk

The Schemes take on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in ful
There was no significant direct credit risk in the Schemes as at 30 June 2016 (2!

(c) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exct
There was no significant direct foreign exchange risk in the Schemes as at 30 June 2016 (:

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of financial i

There was no significant direct interest risk in the Schemes as at 30 June 2016 (2

(iii) Equity and Other Price Risk

Equity and other price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities and unit prices decrease as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual stock or factors affecting all instruments in the market.

To mitigate the impact of equity and other price risk the investment process ensures there is diversification of equity exposures within 1

Changes in price as disclosed in this note are based on an analysis of the yearly change in relevant market indices over the last 10 years. These represent
what is considered to be a reasonably possible change rather than extreme fluctuations that may occur from time to time. As such, actual future market
movement may diffe

The effect on the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income due to reasonably possible changes in market factors, as represented by
the equity indices, with all other variables held constant are indicated in the following tables:

Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolic

201¢ 201t
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi

attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ B + B + B + -
Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 94,89 (54,74¢ 28% -15% 93,56 (50,12t
International Equities Func 26% -14% 88,77 (47,807 26% -14% 81,27 (43,76¢
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 16,04 (12,272 34% -26% 14,69 (11,23t
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 23,90 (23,901 % 1% 21,88 (21,882
Total 223,62 (138,72¢ 211,41 (127,004
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolic
201¢ 201t
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi

attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ B + B + B + -

Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 35,59 (20,534 28% -15% 37,06 (19,85¢
International Equities Func 26% -14% 37,28 (20,074 26% -14% 36,05 (19,41:
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 6,66 (5,09¢ 33% -26% 6,25¢ (4,93€
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 21,90 (21,901 % 1% 21,18 (21,18¢
Total 101,44 (67,607 100,55 (65,381
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NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Equity and Other Price Risk (continued)

Income Builder

201¢

201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Australian Equities Funt 26% -15% 123,63 (71,32¢ 28% -15% 144,72 (77,531
Fixed Interest Funt 7% -7% 67 (67¢ 7% 1% 72 (72¢
Total 124,31 (72,007 145,44 (78,25¢
Inflation Plus - Moderate Portfolio
201¢ 201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ - + - + - + -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% 6,85 (3,95¢ 28% -15% 3,30 (1,76¢
International Equities Func 26% -14% 19,94 (10,73¢ 26% -14% 8,91 (4,802
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 19,03 (19,03¢ 7% 1% 8,48 (8,48
Total 45,83 (33,73C 20,70 (15,05
Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio
201€ 201¢E

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ - + - + - + 7| -
Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 36,67 (21,15¢ 28% -15% 39,00 (20,89:
International Equities Func 26% -14% 37,68 (20,294 26% -14% 37,21 (20,03¢
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 5,34 (4,082 34% -26% 5,271 (4,032
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 4,38 (4,387 % 1% 4,33 (4,33
Total 84,09 (49,927 85,82 (49,29€
Horizon 2 Income Portfolic
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category 2016 $'000 Change in price $'000
+ - + - + - + -
Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 10,71 (6,181 28% -15% 10,70 (5.73:
International Equities Func 26% -14% 4,46 (2,404 26% -14% 4,14 (2,22¢
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 15,20 (11,624 34% -26% 14,09 (10,78¢
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 16,35 (16,35¢ % 1% 15,16 (15,162
Total 46,72 (36,55¢ 44,10 (33,90¢
Inflation Plus - Conservative Portfolic
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ - + - + - + -
Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 4,88 (2,82( 28% -15% 2,35] (1,268
International Equities Func 26% -14% 8,41 (4,53C 26% -14% 3,76 (2,02¢
Fixed Interest Fun 7% 7% 16,84 (16,84¢€ % 1% 7,59] (7,591
Total 30,14 (24,19€ 13,71 (10,88
Inflation Plus - Assertive Portfolio
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ - + - + - + -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% 6,34 (3,65¢ 28% -15% 511 (2,741
International Equities Fun 26% -14% 36,70 (19,761 26% -14% 27,49 (14,80¢
Fixed Interest Fun 7% -7% 10,55 (10,552 % 1% 7,79 (7,79¢
Total 53,59 (33,97¢ 40,40 (25,341
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NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - (continued)

(c) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Equity and Other Price Risk (continued)

Diversified Debt Fund

201¢

201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ -
Fixed Interest Funt 7% -7% 13,871 (13,875 7% 1% 13,993 (13,993
Total 13,879 (13,875 13,993 (13,993
Horizon 6 Share Portfolic
201¢ 201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ | -
Australian Equities Fun 26% -15% 19,49( (11,244 28% -15% 20,64 (11,062
International Equities Func 26% -14% 24,24( (13,052 26% -14% 23,84 (12,840
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 1,245 (952 34% -26% 1,224 (936,
Total 44,974 (25,248 45,714 (24,838
Property Securities Func
201¢ 201t

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ -
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 49,653 (37,970 34% -26% 42,057 (32,157
Total 49,653 (37,970 42,05 (32,157
Global Share Func
201¢ 201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ -
International Equities Func 26% -14% 30,26 (16,298 26% -14% 39,864 (21,468
Total 30,264 (16,298 39,864 (21,468
Australian Share Fund
201¢ 201t

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% 24,417 (14,087 28% -15% 18,14( (9,718
Total 24,411 (14,087 18,14( (9,718
Platinum Global Fund
201¢ 201¢

Category

Change in price

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders
$'000

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg
Change in price $'000

* -

T

+ = +

International Equities Fun

26% -14%

23,399 (12,600

26% -14% 31,314 (16,863

Total

23,399 (12,600

31,314 (16,863
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NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Equity and Other Price Risk (continued)

Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

201¢€ 201t
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ = + = + = + -

Fixed Interest Funt 7% -7% 5.876 (5,876) 7% 1% 6,515 (6,515
Total 5,876 (5,876) 6,515 (6,515
Global Property Fund

201¢€ 201t

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Property Equities Fun 34% -26% 26,38( (20,173 34% -26% 27,094 (20,722
Total 26,38( (20,173 27,094 (20,722
Australian Share Index Func
201¢ 201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
¥ = ¥ = ¥ = ¥ -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% 14,804 (8,542 28% -15% 12,598 (6,749
Total 14,804 (8,542 12,594 (6,749
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolic
201¢ 201¢

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000
+ = + = + = + -
Australian Equities func 26% -15% 3,730 (2,152 28% -15% 4,157 (2,224
International Equities Fun 26% -14% 5,099 (2,742 26% -14% 5,267 (2,834
Total 8,823 (4,894 9,413 (5,058
Hedged Global Share Fun
201¢€ 201t

Effect on net profit
attributable to unitholders

Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholderg

Category Change in price $'000 Change in price $'000

¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
International Equities Fun 26% -14% 6,924 (3,728 26% -14% 6,531 (3,516
Total 6,924 (3,728 6,531 (3,516
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NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Equity and Other Price Risk (continued)

Australian Share Growth Style Func

201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category 2016 Whole Dollars $ Change in price Whole Dollars $
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% L L 28% -15% 964,43 (516,662
Total L L 964,43 (516,662
Australian Share Value Style Func
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category 2016 Whole Dollars $ Change in price Whole Dollars $
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Australian Equities Funi 26% -15% L L 28% -15% 1,660,84 (889,741
Total L L 1,660,84 (889,741
Global Share Growth Style Func
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category 2016 Whole Dollars $ Change in price Whole Dollars
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
International Equities Func 26% -14% L L 26% -14% 1,040,52 (560,281
Total L L 1,040,52 (560,281
Global Share Value Style Funi
201¢ 201¢
Effect on net profit Effect on net profi
attributable to unitholders attributable to unitholderg
Category 2016 Whole Dollars $ Change in price Whole Dollars $
¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
International Equities Func 26% -14% L L 26% -14% 3,366,21f (1,812,57¢
Total L L 3,366,21f (1,812,57¢

(d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk

The Schemes are exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable units. Therefore, they invest the majority of their assets either in unlisted schemes with
daily redemptions, or in investments that are readily disposed of in an active market, which under normal market conditions are readily convertible to

cash

Net assets attributable to unitholders are repayable on demand, subject to redemption freeze provisions. In addition the Schemes' policy is to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet normal operating requirements and expected redemption requests.

In accordance with the Schemes' policies, the Schemes' liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis, and the Responsible Entity reviews this on a
quarterly basis.

The Schemes' liabilities are expected to be settled within less than one month, except for amounts owing to the Responsible Entity which are expected to
be settled within one to three months.

(e) Fair value of financial instruments

The Schemes' financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table details how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in particular, the valuation techniques applied where valuation techniques
involve the use of non-market observable inj

Financial assets / Fair Value Valuation Techniques
(financial liabilities) Hierarchy
Unlisted managed investment
scheme 2 Valued at redemption price as established by the Responsible Entity of the underlying trust.

The investments by the Schemes are all in unlisted managed investment schemes which are classified as Level 2 and there have been no tr
the levels during the year.
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NOTE 10 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities

Net operating profit/(los
Income reinveste

Changes in the fair value of
investment

Changes in assets and liabilities
during the financial yee
(Increase)/decrease in ott
receivable
(Decrease)/increase in ott
accounts payable and accrued
expense

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Cash at bar

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities

Distributions to unitholder
reinveste

(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities

Net operating profit/(los
Income reinveste

Changes in the fair value of
investment

Changes in assets and liabilities
during the financial yee
(Increase)/decrease in ott
receivable
(Decrease)/increase in ott
accounts payable and accrued
expense

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Cash at bar

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities

Distributions to unitholder
reinveste

Horizon 4 Balanced

Horizon 3 Conservative

. Inflation Plus - Moderate
Income Builder

Portfolio Growth Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3,93: 92,02¢ 5,14( 43,43t (20,92t 51,93° 2,23t 8,48(
(68,58¢ (33,241 (33,357 (14,15¢ (34,067 (45,102 (15,274 (9,58¢
73,981 (49,991 33,928 (24,221 61,131 (39¢ 11,993 72t
(69) (11c 27) (9t 51 (5€ 1) ¥
(3) 1) (3) - 26 2¢
9,254 8,68 5,683 4,96¢ 6,187 6,38: (1,018) (357

65,68( 34,97 32,65 14,85: 24,19 38,55: 19,04 10,29¢
65,68( 34,97« 32,65 14,85: 24,19 38,55: 19,04 10,29¢
2,092 1,04( 543 39: 436 29( 35 83:
2,09: 1,04( 54: 39: 43¢ 29( 3t 83:
Horizon 5 Growth Horizon 2 Income Inflation Plus - Inflation Plus Assertive
Portfolio Portfolio Conservative Portfolio Portfolio
201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢€ 201¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(1,37¢ 37,68: 7,14¢ 17,79¢ 2,21. 5,54! 66: 28,17¢
(27,614 (11,322 (16,32¢ (10,93¢ (9,131 (5,987 (35,76¢ (32,33¢
32,421 (23,06( 7,872 (8,05C 6,130 15¢ 33,424 2,98
@) (32 2 - - @ - -
(2) - (56) 1¢ 15 2 (21) 3
3,422 3,26! (1,362) (1,16€ (774) (26¢ (1,704) (1,141

21,37t 9,97( 18,90¢ 6,17 9,78( 6,62: 35,51 28,96¢
21,37t 9,97( 18,90¢ 6,17 9,78( 6,62: 35,51 28,96¢
3,695 2,29 275 10« 62 1( 3,695 -
3,69¢ 2,29 27¢ 10« 6: 1( 3,69¢ -
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MLC Investment Trust
Notes to the financial statement
For the year ended 30 June 20:

NOTE 10 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued;

Diversified Debt Fund  Horizon 6 Share Portfolio Property Securities Fund Global Share Fund

201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201€ 201¢ 201€ 201¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities
Net operating profit/(los 10,60( 7,61 (2,01€ 20,53: 29,34¢ 22,00: (2,72C 29,307
Income reinveste (9,977 (8,71¢ (15,06€ (5,07¢ (6,89¢ (6,46( (26,367 (2,801
Changes in the fair value of
investment (1,297) 46¢ 18,748 (13,822 (22,858) (15,912 29,167 (26,23:

Changes in assets and liabilities

during the financial yee

(Increase)/decrease in ott

receivable ) : 4) (1€ - - 18
(Decrease)/increase in ott

accounts payable and accrued

expense (28) ¢ 3) - (11) - 16
Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities (704) (62¢€ 1,659 1,61¢ (418) (371 114 27!

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Cash at bar 5,54; 6,27¢ 15,76: 7,35 2,76¢ 2,13: 19,04: 3,68:
5,54; 6,27¢ 15,76: 7,35 2,76¢ 2,13: 19,04: 3,68:

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities
Distributions to unitholder

reinveste - - 23 7( 400 61¢ 200 14¢
- - 2! 7 40( 61¢ 20( 14¢

Australian Share Fund Platinum Global Fund  Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio  Global Property Fund

201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities
Net operating profit/(los 44; 4,71¢ (7,432 23,67¢ 2,00¢ 2,46 4,64¢ 8,22!
Income reinveste (4,89¢ (4,32¢ (10,41C (16,55(C (2,36¢ (2,281 (6,971 (2,471
Changes in the fair value of
investment 4,145 (7317 18,601 (6,23¢ 115 (57¢ 1,964 (6,10€

Changes in assets and liabilities

during the financial yee

(Increase)/decrease in other

receivable - : 19 : - : -
(Decrease)/increase in ott

accounts payable and accrued

expense (5) : (2) - 14) (2¢ (20) !
Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities (315) (342 776 89:. (255) (42C (379) (34¢

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Cash at bar 51! 2,81! 6,91« 8,02¢ 1,77; 1,38( 7,29¢ 3,12¢
51! 2,81! 6,91« 8,02¢ 1,77; 1,38( 7,29¢ 3,12¢

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities

Distributions to unitholder
reinveste 23 1! 42 - - - - -
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MLC Investment Trust
Notes to the financial statement
For the year ended 30 June 20:

NOTE 10 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued;

Australian Share Index Horizon 7 Accelerated Hedged Global Share  Australian Share Growth
Fund Growth Portfolio Fund Style Fund
201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢€ 201t 201¢ 201¢
. \ . \ \ \ Whole Whole
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Dollars $ Dollars §
(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities

Net operating profit/(los 24¢ 1,65: (1,092 5,37 (812 2,20: 7,99: 200,66¢
Income reinveste (2,27¢ (1,80¢ (4,50% (1,54¢ 1,771 (261 (53,121 (224,472
Changes in the fair value of

investment 1,913 6¢ 5,338 (4,084 2,447 (2,072 36,902 (5,51C

Changes in assets and liabilities

during the financial yee

(Increase)/decrease in ott

receivable - : - : - @ 55 2!
(Decrease)/increase in ott

accounts payable and accrued

expense (2) : @) - 4) : (1,800) (15¢
Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities (119) (8¢ (266) (25€ (141) (132 (9,972) (29,447

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Cash at bar 1,12¢ 1,04¢ 4,80: 1,67: 2,11, 50! - 145,65:
1,12¢ 1,04¢ 4,80: 1,67: 2,11, 50! - 145,65:

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities

Distributions to unitholders
reinveste - 4: 23 1( 3,695 - 147 14!
- 4. 2! 1( 3,69¢ - 14" 14!

Australian Share Value Global Share Growth  Global Share Value Style

Style Fund Style Fund Fund
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole Whole

Dollars $ Dollars § Dollars ¢ Dollars § Dollars ¢ Dollars §
(a) Reconciliation of operating
profit to net cash flows from
operating activities

Net operating profit/(los (122,67¢ 377,31° 223,50: 732,02¢ 57,020  1,705,71.
Income reinveste (88,31¢ (385,961 (482,47¢ (103,372 - (299,84:
Changes in the fair value of

investment 196,824 (33,47¢ 249,223 (650,192 (82,101) (1,481,87¢

Changes in assets and liabilities

during the financial yee

(Increase)/decrease in ott

receivables 110 44 64 10 170 135
(Decrease)/increase in ott

accounts payable and accrued

expenses (3,016) 451 (2,537) 1,052 (6,328) 1,687
Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities (17,075) (41,628 (12,228) (20,47¢ (31,236) (74,18¢

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, units in the Cash Fund and short term deposits at call. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statements of Financial Position as follows:
Cash at bar - 258,02¢ - 138,27¢ - 238,89(
- 258,02¢ - 138,27¢ - 238,89(

(c) Non-cash financing and
investing activities
Distributions to unitholder
reinvested 150 140 76 34 140,289 105
15( 14( 7¢ 3¢ 140,28¢ 10¢
NOTE 11 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE DATE
There has not arisen in the interval between the year end and the date of this report any other item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature
likely, in the opinion of the Responsible Entity, to significantly affect the operations of the Schemes, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs
of the Schemes, in future financial ye
NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Schemes had no known commitments or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2016 (2!
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MLC Investment Trust
Director's Declaration
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Directors' declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of MLC Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Schemes:
The financial statements and notes set out on pages 7 to 45, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a) giving a true and fair view of the financial positions of the Schemes as at 30 June 2016 and of their performance for the year ended on
that date;
(b) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001;
; (c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Schemes will be able to pay their debts as and when they become due and payable; and

(d) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(a).

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director:

2ANDRA BIREENSLEIGH

/ , (b//f o C\“;f &%

Signature: //

ot
Dated at Sydney this __— day of August 2016
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Ernst & Young

200 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

EY

Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report to the
Trust:

Horizon 4 Balanced Portfolio
Horizon 3 Conservative Growth Portfolio
Wholesale Income Builder

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Moderate
Portfolio

Horizon 5 Growth Portfolio
horizon 2 Income Portfolio

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Conservative
Portfolio

MLC Wholesale Inflation Plus - Assertive
Portfolio

MLC Wholesale Diversified Debt Fund
Horizon 6 Share Portfolio

Wholesale Property Securities Fund
Wholesale Global Share Fund

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au

unitholders of the MLC Investment

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Fund

MLC Investment Trust MLC Platinum Global Fund
Horizon 1 Bond Portfolio

MLC Global Property Fund

MLC Wholesale Australian Share Index Fund
Horizon 7 Accelerated Growth Portfolio
MLC Hedged Global Share Fund

Wholesale Australian Share Growth Style Fund

Wholesale Australian Share Value Style Fund
Wholesale Global Share Growth Style Fund
Wholesale Global Share Value Style Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the MLC Investment Trust consisting of the
schemes listed above (the ‘Schemes’) which comprises the statements of financial position as at 30
June 2016, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes
in net assets attributable to unitholders and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the

directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the Responsible Entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Act 2001 and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. In Note 1(a), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial

Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We have given to the directors of the Responsible Entity a written Auditor’s Independence
Declaration, a copy of which is attached to the directors’ report.

Opinion

In our opinion:
1. the financial report of the Schemes is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the Schemes’ financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of
their performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1(a).

ot gy

Ernst & Young

Rita Da Silva
Partner

Sydney

30 August 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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